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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Capri Global Capital Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

1.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Capri Global
Capital Limited (‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiary - Capri Global Housing
Finance Limited (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as the
‘Group’), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, and a summary
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as the “‘consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, and based on the consideration of report of other auditor on separate financial
statements of a subsidiary, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’)
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2022, and their consolidated profit
(including other comprehensive income), consolidated cash flows and the consolidated
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI’) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of audit report of the
other auditor referred to in the ‘Other Matter” paragraph below is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

4.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Key audit matter | How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment of loans and advances to customers
(Refer Note 2.5 for significant accounting policies and Note 40.2 for credit risk disclosures)

As at 31 March 2022, the Group has reported
gross loan assets of X 64,414.80 million
against which an impairment loss of
X1,706.77 million has been recorded. The
Group recognized impairment provision for
loan assets based on the Expected Credit
Loss (“ECL”) approach laid down under
‘Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments’.

The estimation of ECL on financial
instruments  involves significant
management judgement and estimates
and the use of different techniques and
assumptions which could have a
material impact on reported profits.
Significant management judgement and
assumptions involved in measuring
ECL is required with respect to:

» ensuring completeness and accuracy of
the data used

» determining the criteria for a significant
increase in credit risk

» factoring in  future economic
assumptions

» techniques used to  determine

probability of default, loss given default
and exposure at default.

These parameters are derived from the
Group’s historical data.

During the previous and current years, RBI
announced various relief measures for the
borrowers which were implemented by the
Group such as “COVID 19 Regulatory
Package-  Asset  Classification  and
Provisioning” announced by the RBI on 17
April 2020 and RBI circular on “Asset
Classification and Income Recognition
following the expiry of Covid-19 regulatory
package” dated 07 April 2021 (collectively
referred to as ‘the RBI circulars’), and

Our audit focused on assessing the appropriateness
of management’s judgment and estimates used in
the impairment analysis through procedures that
included, but were not limited to, the following:

¢ Obtained an understanding of the techniques
adopted by the Group including the key inputs
and assumptions. Since assumptions and
parameters are based on historical data, we
assessed whether historical experience was
representative of current circumstances and was
relevant in view of the recent impairment losses
incurred within the portfolios;

e Considered the Group's accounting policies for
estimation of expected credit loss on loans and
assessing compliance with the policies in terms
of Ind AS 109

e Understanding management’s updated
processes, systems and controls implemented in
relation to impairment allowance process,
particularly in view of COVID-19 Regulatory
Package.

e Tested the design and operating effectiveness of
key controls over completeness and accuracy of
the key inputs and assumptions considered for
calculation, recording, monitoring of the
impairment loss recognized and staging of
assets. Also evaluated the controls over the
validation of data and related approvals.

e Evaluated the appropriateness of the Company’s
determination of Significant Increase in Credit
Risk (“SICR”) in accordance with the applicable
accounting standard considering the impact of
COVID-19 on account of moratorium and
restructuring benefit extended by the Holding
Company and the basis for classification of
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“Resolution Framework for COVID-19
related Stress” (the ‘Resolution Framework’)
dated on 6 August 2020 and 4 June 2021,
which have been collectively considered by
the management in identification,
classification and provisioning of loan assets
for impairment.

On the basis of an estimate made by the
respective management of the entities
included in the Group, an overlay to the tune
of Rs 443.30 million has been recognized by
the Group as at 31 March 2022 on account of
increase in default risk due to the impact of
COVID-19 on recoverability of loans of the
Group. The basis of estimates and
assumptions involved in arriving at the
overlay are monitored by the Group
periodically and significantly depend on
future developments in the economy
including expected impairment losses.

Disclosure

The disclosures regarding the Group’s
application of Ind AS 109 are key to
explaining the key judgements and material
inputs to ECL computation. Further,
disclosures to be provided as per RBI
circulars with regards to non-performing
assets and provisions is also an area of focus.

Considering the significance of the above
matter to the overall financial statements,
additional complexities involved on account
of ongoing impact of COVID-19 and extent
of management’s estimates and judgements
involved, it required significant auditor
attention. Accordingly, we have identified
this as a key audit matter.

various exposures into various stages. Further,
assessed the critical assumptions and input data
used in the estimation of expected credit loss for
specific key credit risk parameters, such as the
movement between stages, Exposure at default
(EAD), probability of default (PD) or loss given
default (LGD);

e Evaluated the reports and working for the
methodology used in the computation of
Through The Cycle PD, Point In Time PD and
LGD, among others.

e Verified that the Group’s approved policy in
relation to moratorium and restructuring is in
accordance with the RBI requirements.
Evaluated that the restructuring was approved
and implemented in accordance with such
policy, and the provisions created on such
restructured loan assets were in accordance with
the Company’s policy.

e Performed test of details over calculations of
ECL, in relation to the completeness and
accuracy of data.

e Obtained written representations from
management and those charged with
governance on whether they believe significant
assumptions used in calculation of expected
credit losses are reasonable.

e Assessed the appropriateness and adequacy of
the related presentation and disclosures of Note
40.2 “Credit risk” and ECL disclosed in the
accompanying financial statements, including
disclosure of key judgements and assumptions
involved, in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards and related RBI circulars
and Resolution Framework.

Information Technology system for the financial reporting process

The Group is highly dependent upon its
information technology (IT) systems for
carrying out its operations and processing
significant volume of transactions, which
impacts key financial accounting and
reporting activities. The Group has put in
place the IT General Controls and
application controls to ensure that the
information produced by the company
complete, accurate and reliable. Among
other things, the Management also uses the
information produced by the entity’s IT

Our audit procedures for assessment of the IT
systems and controls with reference to financial
statements, included but were not limited to the
following:

e Obtained an understanding of the key IT
systems, IT General Controls which covered
access controls, program/ system changes,
program development and computer operations
i.e. job processing, data/ system backup and
incident management and application controls
relevant to our audit.
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systems for accounting and preparation and

the presentation of the financial statements. | o  Tested the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of the general IT controls

Since our audit strategy included focus on over the key IT systems that are critical to
entity’s key IT systems relevant to our audit financial reporting. This included evaluation of
due to their potential pervasive impact on entity’s controls to ensure segregation of duties
the consolidated financial statements, we and access rights being provisioned / modified
have determined the audit of IT systems and based on duly approved requests, access for exit
related control environment for accounting cases being revoked in a timely manner and
and financial reporting as a key audit access of all users being re-certified during the
matter. period of audit. Further, controls related to

program change were evaluated to verify
whether the changes were approved, tested in an
environment that was segregated from
production and moved to production by
appropriate users;

e Tested application controls (automated
controls), related interfaces and report logic for
system generated reports relevant to the audit
for evaluating completeness and accuracy;

e Tested compensating controls or performed
alternate audit procedures to assess whether
there were any unaddressed IT risks that would
impact the controls or completeness and/or
accuracy of data.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

6. The Holding Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

7.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding
Company’s Management and the Board of Directors. The Holding Company’s Management
and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial
performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Management and
the Board of Directors of the entities included in the Group are responsible for maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of their respective Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective management and Board
of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability
of respective Company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
respective Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group is also responsible
for overseeing the financial reporting process of each company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

10. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

11. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Act, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control;

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on the internal financial controls with
reference to the consolidated financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such
controls based on our audit;

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management and the Board of
Directors;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management and Board of Directors use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern;

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation; and

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such
entities or business activities within the Group, to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of financial statements of such entities included in the
consolidated financial statements, of which we are the independent auditors. For the
other entity included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited
by other auditor, such other auditor remain responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

12.

13.

14.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

15.

16.

The consolidated financial statements include the audited financial statements of a
subsidiary, whose financial statements reflect total assets (before consolidation
adjustments) of Rs. 20,354.33 million as at 31 March, 2022, total revenue (before
consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 2,204.36 million and net profit after tax (before
consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 431.77 million and net cash inflows of Rs. 2,146.43 million
for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements,
which has been audited by its independent auditor. The independent auditor’s report on
the financial statements of this entity has been furnished to us by the Management and our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary, is based solely on the report of such
auditor and the procedures performed by us are as stated in paragraph above.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal
and regulatory requirements below, are not modified in respect of the above matter with
respect to our reliance on the work done and the report of the other auditor.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 were
audited by the predecessor auditor, Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants
who have expressed an unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial statements vide
their audit report dated 17 June 2021, and which has been relied upon by us for the purpose
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

17.

As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit and the report of the statutory
auditor of a subsidiary company incorporated in India which was not audited by us, we
report that the remuneration paid during the current year by the Holding Company and its
subsidiary company to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid
down under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

18. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order” /“CARQO”) issued by the Central Government in terms of
Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report, according to the
information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for
the Company and its subsidiary included in the consolidated financial statements of the
Company, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO
reports.

19.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of
report of the other auditor on separate financial statements of a subsidiary, as noted in “other
matters paragraph’, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the report of the other auditor;

The consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with
the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements;

in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company, and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and
reports of the statutory auditor of its subsidiary company incorporated in India, none of
the directors of the Group Companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31
March 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India,
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
‘Annexure I’ wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and based on the consideration of report of the other auditor on the separate financial
statements of the subsidiary as noted in other matter paragraph:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on
the consolidated financial position of the Group as detailed in Note 49 to the
consolidated financial statements;
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

ii.

iii.

iv.

The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses, on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2022;

There has been no delay in transferring amounts to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies
incorporated in India during the year ended 31 March 2022;

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company
to or in any persons or entities, including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company (‘the
Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the Holding Company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding
Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed, as considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that causes us
to believe that the management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above
contain any material misstatement

The dividend declared during the year ended 31 March 2022 by the Holding
Company is in compliance with section 123 of the Act.

For M M Nissim & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 107122W /W100672

SD/-

Sanjay Khemani

Partner

Membership No. 044577
UDIN: 22044577 AJJZNF5940

Mumbai

21 May 2022
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Annexure I

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

(Referred to in paragraph 1(A) (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Capri Global
Capital Limited (‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiary (collectively referred as
‘Group’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022, we have audited the internal financial
controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company
and its subsidiary company, which is the company covered under the Act, as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

2.

The respective Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements based on the criteria established by the respective Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note”) issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI’). These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the respective Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference
to the consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with
reference to the consolidated financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the
ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.
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Annexure I to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Capri Global
Capital Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements (Continued)

4.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated
financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls
with reference to the consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by
the other auditor in the subsidiary company in terms of their reports referred to in the other
matters below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of the consolidated financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial
statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the
consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
with reference to the consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Annexure I to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Capri Global
Capital Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Opinion

8. Inour opinion, the Holding Company and such company incorporated in India which is its
subsidiary company, have in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to the consolidated financial statements and such controls were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal financial controls with reference to the
consolidated financial statements criteria established by such Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

Other Matter

9. Our aforesaid report under Section 143 (3) (i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to the consolidated financial
statements insofar as it relates to a subsidiary company, which is a company incorporated
in India, is based on the corresponding report of the auditor of such company incorporated
in India.

For M M Nissim & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 107122W/W100672

SD/-

Sanjay Khemani

Partner

Membership No. 044577
UDIN: 22044577 AJJZNF5940
Mumbai

21 May 2022



CAPRI GLOBAL CAPITAL LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2022
(% in millions)
Particulars I:):e As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
ASSETS
(1) |Financial assets
3) |Cash and cash equivalents 3 3,225.06 1,705.80
(b) [Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents 4 306.15 536.68
€) |Receivables 5 81.64 15.08 |
(d) |Loans 6 62,708.03 46,862.55
€) |Investments 7 3.774.84 8.074.53
(f) |Other financial assets 8 222.14 113.14
Total Financial Assets 70,317.86 57.307.78
(2) |Non-financial Assets
(@) [Current Tax Assets (Net) 9 100.38 82.63
b) |Deferred tax assets (Net) 10 366.83 257.29
() _|Investment Properties 11 - 6.67
d) |Property, plant and equipment 318.02 254.61
(e) |Intangible Assets Under Development 12 23.20 0.70
Other intanaible assets 25.66 16.81
(g) |other non-financial assets 13 375.74 204.34
Total Non-Financial Assets 1,209.83 823.05
Total Assets 71,527.69 58,130.83
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES
(1) |Financial Liabilities
(@) | Derivative financial instruments 16A 12.42 -
(b) Payables
(A) Trade Pavables 14
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 1.75 =
(if) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 333.10 74.94
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(B) Other Pavables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises E 5
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 78.25 72.27
micro enterprises and small enterprises
() Debt Securities 15 4,330.90 | 6,741.30 |
(d) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 16B 43,752.97 30,994.57
{e) Other Financial liabilities 17 3,508.81 2,776.54
Total Financial Liabilities 52.018.20 40,659.62
(2) |Non-financial Liabilities
(a) Current tax liabilities (net) 18 27.89 148.86
() | Provisions 19 166.19 125.67
(¢) | oOther non-financial liabilities 20 90.70 23.67
Total Non-Financial Liabilities 284.78 298.20
Total Liabilities 52,302.98 40,957.82
(3) |Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 21 351.31 350.57
(b) Other Equity 22 18,873.40 16,822.44
Totai Equity 19.224.71 17,173.01
Total Equity and Liabilities 71.,527.69 58.130.83

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

In terms of our report attached

For M M Nissim & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Reaistration No, 107122W/W100672)
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Managing Director &
Chief Financial Officer
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Company Secretary
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CAPRI GLOBAL CAPITAL LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

(% in millions)
. Year ended March 31, Year ended March 31,
Particulars Note No. 2022 2021
Revenue from operations
(i Interest income 23 8,395.78 6,735.21
(i) Dividend income 1.23 1.18
(i) | Fee and commission income 24 LN 20.74
(iv) Net Gain on Derecognition of Financial Instruement 170.01 -
(v) Net gain on fair value changes 25 236.17 288.23
(vi} Sale of Service 137.06 =
{vii) Other operating income 26 242.85 315.47
(I) |Total Revenue from operations 9,689.87 7,360.83
(11) |Other Income 27 128.00 10.54
(III) |Total Income (I + II) 9,817.87 7,371.37
Expenses
[0) Finance costs 28 3,308.47 2,887.05
(i) Fees and commission Expense 190.79 3
(iii) Impairement of financial instruments (Expected Credit Loss) 29 1,056.68 544.68
(iv) Employee benefit expenses 30 1,746.04 993.79
(v} Depreciation and amortisation expense 12 98.77 105.11
(vi) Other expenses 31 690.89 483.61
(IV) |Total Expenses 7,091.64 5,014.24
V) |Profit before tax (III- IV) 2,726.23 2,357.13
Tax Expense:
- Current tax 35 779.55 6893.03
- Deferred tax 36 (109.53) (105.45)
- Tax Pertaining to earlier years 5.80 =
{VI) |Total tax expense 675.82 587.58
VII) | Net Profit After Tax (V - VI) 2,050.41 1,769.55
(VIII) | Other Comprehensive Income 32
(A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (0.47) 6.27
Income Tax impact on above 0.12 (1.56)
Total (A) (0.35) 4.71
(B) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Fair Value Gain on time value of forward element of forward
contract in hedaing relationship (6.10)
Income Tax impact on above 1.53 -
Total (B) (4.57) -
Other Comprehensive Income (A) + (B) (4.92) 4.71
1X) |Total Comprehensive Income (VII + VIII) 2,045.49 1,774.26
(X) |Earnings per equity share (of ¥ 2 Each)
Basic (%) 11.69 10.10
Diluted (%) 11.56 10.03

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

In terms of our report attached

For M M Nissim & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

(Firm's Registration No. 107122W/W100672)

Sanjay Khemani

Partner
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PRI GLOBAL AL LIMITED

SOLIDATED FLOW OR THI R ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
(% in millions)
Particulars Year end;:zl;larch 31, | Year endzegzp:arch 31, |
Cash Flow From Operating activities
Profit before tax from cantinuing operations 2,726.23 2,357.13
Adjustments for:
Depreciation & amortisation 98.77 105.11
Impairment on financial instruments 1,056.68 607.01
Net gain on fair valuation of financial instruments (236.17) (288.23)|
Net gain on derecognition of financial instruments {170.01) =
Loss/(Gain) on sale of fixed assets (0.73) 0.21
Loss/(Gain) on sale of Investment Property (2.93) -
Gain on sale of Investments 2 =
Share Based Payments tc employees 54.78 25.45
Dividend income (1.23) (1.19)
Fair value of derivative (4.30) -
Interest on lease liability 26.12 25.56
Interest income (8,395.78) (6,735.23),
[Finance cost 3,308.47 2,887.05
Interest received 8,285.99 6,632.39
Interest Paid (3,434.45) (2,545.84)
Operating profit before working capital changes 3,311.44 3,069.42
Working capital changes
Loans (16,701.66) (8,124.83)
Trade receivables & other financial assets (48.76) (49.32)
Other non-financial assets (175.79) (30.24)
| Trade payables 261.31 3.03
Other financial liability 817.09 2,537.62
Other non-financial liability 67,02 14.02
Provision {15.11) 46.85
Cash flows (used in)/generated from operating activities (12,484.46) (2,533.45)
Income tax paid (922.41) {652.48)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from operating activities {13,406.87) (3,185.93)
Cash Flow From Investing activities
Increase/{decrease) in Fixed deposits not considered as cash and cash equivalent 235.35 (417.50)
Purchase of fixed and intangible assets (106.55) (64.25)
Intangible Assets Under Development (11.70) 1.28
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 3.98 2.73
Sale/(Purchase) of investment in Mutual Funds (net) 2,328.16 (529.43)
Proceeds from Sale of investment 3,228.62 =
Purchase of investment (1,018.59) (3,649.61)
Dividend received 1.23 1,18
Proceeds from sale of Investment Properties 5.01 2.15
Net cash flows {used in)/generated from investing activities 4,666.51 (4,653.45)
Cash Flow From Financing activities
Debt securities Issued - 5,250.00
Debt securities Redeemed (2:416.67) -
Proceed from Borrowings other than debt securities 18,640.00 14,810.00
Repayment of Borrowings other than debt securities Repaid (6,514.25) (11,078.76)
Other short term loan (net) 654.26 -
Payments for the principal portion of the lease liability (33.59) (19.83)
Payments for the interest portion of the lease liability (26:12) (25.56)
Dividends paid (70.14) (35.04)
Issue of Equity Share 26.29 21.09
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from financing activities 10,259.78 8,921.90
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,519.42 1,082.52
Cash and cash equivalents at April 1, 2021 1,706.02 623.50
Cash and cash equivalents at March 31, 2022 3,225.44 1,706.02
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 14.88 14.75
Cheques on Hand 8.81 =
Balances with banks
In current accounts 1,101,54 1,691.05
In Unpaid Dividend Account 0.21 0.22
Current maturities of fixed deposits with Original Maturity of Less than 3 Months 2,100.00 -
Total cash and cash eguivalents 3,225.44 1,706.02

1. Cash flows arising on account of taxes on income are not specifically bifurcated with respect to investing & financing activities.

2. Previous Years figures have been regrouped, wherever necessary to confirm to current year's classification.

3. Figures in brackets represent outflows.

In terms of our report attached
For M M Nissim & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Reqistration No. 107122W/W100672)
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CAPRI GLOBAL CAPITAL LIMITED
TES FOR T OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCI TATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

Capri Global Capital Limited ("the Company/Holding Company") having principal place of business at Registered office, 502, Tower A, Peninsula
Business Park, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400013 is engaged in the business of providing loans to Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises (MSMESs), providing long term finance for construction of residential houses in India, retail Lending in India and in providing ancillary
services related to the said business activities. The Holding Company is NBFC — Investment and Credit Company (NBFC-ICC), holding a Certificate
of Registration No. B-13.01882 from the Reserve Bank of India ("RBI”) dated November 05, 2007, having CIN: L65921MH1994PLC173469.

Capri Global Housing Finance Limited (the Subsidiary Company) holds registration certificate No. 07.0139.16 with National Housing Bank under
section 29A of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 dated 18th July 2016 and is engaged in the business of providing loans primarily to customers
for purchase / construction / repair and renovation of residential property.

The consolidated financial statements relate to the Holding Company and its Subsidiary Company (together regrouped as the "Group").

The Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the board
of directors on May 21, 2022.

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the holding and its subsidiary (together the “Group”) have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the application of fair value measurements required
or allowed by relevant Accounting Standards. Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosed amount of contingent liabilities. Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions are significant to the Group are discussed in Note 2.14 - Significant accounting judgements, estimates
and assumptions.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%) and all values are rounded to the nearest millions, except when otherwise indicated.

2.2. Presentation of financial statement

The financial statements of the Group are presented as per Schedule III (Division IIT) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) applicable to NBFCs,
as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported on a gross basis except when,
there is an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event and the parties
intend to settle on a net basis in the following circumstances:

i. The normal course of business

ii. The event of default

iii. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group and/or its counterparties

2.3. Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period as explained in the accounting policies below
and the relevant provisions of the Act.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an
existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

2.4 Basis of Consolidation

(i) The following subsidiary company has been considered in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

% of hokling and voting
Name of Entity Relationship Country cff Ownership held by power
Incorporation As at March | As at March
31, 2022 31, 2021
Capri Global Housing Finance Limited |Subsidiary India Capri Global Capital Limited 100% 100%

(ii) Principles of Consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 110 - “Consolidated Financial
Statements" notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time). The consolidated financiat
statements have been prepared on the following basis:

a) The financial statements of Group have been combined on a line by line basis of like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows of the Holding Company with those of its subsidiary. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the
amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements as at March 31, 2022.

b) The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar
ces and are presented, to the extent possible, in the same manner as the Holding Company’s separate financial state 2nts.

i justments have been made in the financial statements of the subsidiary with respect to different accounting pohici }{'ﬁ'ﬁk -
ents in similar circumstances for the purpose of preparation of consolidated financial statements. 9';-4_ —




¢) Elimination of the carrying amount of the Holding Company’s investment in each subsidiary and the Holding Company’s portion of equity of
each subsidiary.

d) The financial statements of the subsidiary used in consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as that of the Holding Company i.e.
year ended March 31, 2022.

2.5 Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group’s balance sheet on trade date, i.e. when the group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs and revenues that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or Issug or nnancial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recagnition.
Transaction costs and revenues of financial assets or financial liabllities carried at fair value through the prafit or loss account are recognised
immediately in the Statement of Profit or Loss. Trade Receivables are measured at transaction price.

(i) Classification of financial instruments
The Group classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:
1. Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost
2. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through profit or loss account
The classification depends on the contractual terms of the financial assets’ cash flows and the Group’s business model for managing financial
assets which are explained below:

Business model assessment
The Group determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its business

objective.
The Group’s business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios and is based on

observable factors such as:
» How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and reported to the entity’s

key management personnel

» The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and the way those risks

are manaaed
» How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or

on the contractual cash flows collected)

> The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Group’s assessment. The business model assessment is
based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking ‘worst case’ or ‘stress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition
are realised in a way that is different from the Group’s original expectations, the Group does not change the classification of the remaining
financial assets held in that business model, but incorporates such information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial
assets going forward.

The Solely Payments of Princioal and Interest (SPPI) test

As a second step of its classification process the Group assesses the contractual terms of financial assets to identify whether they meet the SPPL
test.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may change over the life of the
financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the premium/discount).

In making this assessment, the Group considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest
includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic
lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement,
the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group dlassifies its financial liabilities at amortised costs unless it has designated liabilities at fair value through the profit and loss account or
is required to measure liabilities at fair value through profit or loss such as derivative liabilities.

(ii) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Debt instruments

These financial assets comprises of bank balances, receivables, investments and other financial assets.

Debt instruments are measured at amortised cost where they have:

a) contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding; and

b) are held within a business mode! whese objective is achieved by holding to collect contractual cash flows.

These debt instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised
cost.

(iii) Items at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Items at fair value through profit or loss comprise:

e Investments (including equity shares) held for trading;

o debt instruments with contractual terms that do not represent solely payments of principal and interest.

Financial instruments held at FVTPL are initially recognised at fair value, with transaction costs recognised in the statement of profit and loss as
incurred. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value and any gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as they arise.

LX) Debt securities and other borrowed funds )_’F BB
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(v) Reclassification
If the business model under which the Group holds financial assets undergoes changes, the financial assets affected are reclassified. The

classification and measurement requirements related to the new category apply prospectively from the first day of the first reporting period
following the change in business model that result in reclassifying the Group’s financial assets. Changes in contractual cash flows are considered
under the accounting policy on Modification and derecognition of financial assets described in subsequent paragraphs.

(vi) Recoanition and Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Recognition:
a) Loans and Advances are initially recognised when the Financial Instruments are transferred to the customers.

b) Investments are initially recognised on the settlement date.

c) Debt securities and borrowings are initially recognised when funds are received by the Group.

d) Other Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Derecagnition of financial assets due to sybstantial modification of terms and conditions:
The Group derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and conditions have been renegotiated to the extent

that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss
has not already been recorded. The newly recognised loans are classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes, unless the new loan is
deemed to be Purchased or Originated as Credit Impaired (POCI).

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does not result in derecognition. Based on the
change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the Group records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not
already been recorded.

Derecognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification

a) Financial assets:
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The Group also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial

asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.
The Group has transferred the financial asset if, the Group has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:
i. The Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
ii. The Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

The Group considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated
third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

When the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has retained control of the asset, the asset
continues to be recognised oniy to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement, in which case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

b) Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the
carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

(vii) Impairment of financial assets
Overview of the ECL principles
The Group records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other debt financial assets not held at FVTPL, in this section all referred to as

‘financial instruments. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind AS 109.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected credit loss), unless there has
been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit fosses resulting from ali possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument, The 12-
month ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within

the 12 months after the reporting date.

Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis, depending on the nature of the underlying
portfolio of financial instruments. The Group has grouped its loan portfolio into Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs), Construction
Finance, Indirect Lending and Housing Finance,

The Group has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial instrument's credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the
financial instrument. The Group does the assessment of significant increase in credit risk at a borrower level. If a borrower has various facilities
having different past due status, then the highest days past due (DPD) is considered to be applicable for all the facilities of that borrower.
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Based on the above, the Group categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as described below:

Stage 1
All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that has low credit risk at the reporting date

and that are not credit impaired upon origination are classified under this stage. The Group classifies all standard advances and advances up to
30 days default under this category. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has reduced and the loan has been reclassified from

Stage 2.

Stage 2
All exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are not credit impaired are classified under this

stage. Financial assets past due for 31 to 90 days are classified under this stage. Stage 2 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has
reduced and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3
All exposures assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that

asset have occurred are classified in this stage. For exposures that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest revenue
is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost (net of provision) rather than the gross carrying amount. More than 90
days Past Due is considered as default for classifying a financial instrument as credit impaired.

Credit-impaired financial assets:
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt financial assets carried at FVTOCI are

credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows

of the financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

a) Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

b) A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

€) The restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider otherwise;
d) It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

e) The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The mechanics of ECL:
The Group calculates ECLs based on historical experience to measure the expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A

cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the

Group expects to receive. .
The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:
Probability of Default (PD) - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may only

happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

Loss Given Default (LGD) - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It is
based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the Group would expect to receive, including from the realisation
of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

Exposure at Default (EAD) - The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure including interest accrued thereon and also including the
undrawn commitments.

Collateral Valuation

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Group seeks to use collateral, where possible. The collateral comes in various forms, such as
the underlying asset financed, cash, securities, letters of credit/guarantees, etc. However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of
ECLs. To the extent possible, the Group uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as collateral.

Collateral repossessed
In its normal course of business, Group repossess assets under SARFASI/ arbitration Act, but do not transfer these assets in its book of accounts.

The Group continues to show these loans account as Non-Performing Assets (NPA) in the books, till the liquidation of the secured assets through
public auction and realise actual payment against these loans.

(viii) Write-offs

The Group reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the Group has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset
in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-offs. Any subsequent recoveries against such loans are
credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(ix) Determination of fair value
On initial recognition, all the financial instruments are measured at fair value. For subsequent measurement, the Group measures certain

categories of financial instruments (as explained in note) at fair value on each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

i. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
ii. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

_The-fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or irabjhty,
/ 'c;%!l;;uzﬁiﬁgi at market participants act in their economic best interest. .
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as
summarised below:

Level 1 financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that the Group has access to at the measurement date. The Group considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading
activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes
available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments - Those where the inputs that are used for valuation are significant and are derived from directly or indirectly
observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in
active markets, quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other than quoted prices such as interest rates
and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In addition, adjustments may be required for the condition or location of the asset or the
extent to which it relates to items that are comparable to the valued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on unobservable inputs
which are siagnificant to the entire measurement, the Group will classify the instruments as Level 3.

Level 3 financial instruments - Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has
occurred.

Difference befween transaction price and fair value at initial recognition

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the consideration
given or received) unless the fair value of that instrument is evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the
same instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable
markets. When such evidence exists, the Group recognises the difference between the transaction price and the fair value in profit or loss on
initial recognition (i.e. on day one).

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the fair value is based on a valuation technigue using
only inputs observable in market transactions, the Group recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value in net gain on fair
value changes. In the cases where fair value is based on models for which some of the inputs are not observable, the difference between the
transaction price and the fair value is not recognised at the initial recognition stage.

2.6 Revenue from operations

(i) Interest Income

Interest income is recognised by applying EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets and financial
assets classified as measured at FVTPL, taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate. For credit impaired financial
assets, the Group applies the EIR to the amortised cost of the financiai asset in subsequent reporting period.

The EIR is computed
a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross

carrying amount of a financial asset
b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) in estimating

the cash flows
¢. Including all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and

all other premiums or discounts.

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest income with the corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the assets.

(ii) Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the payment is established.

(iii) Fees & Commission Income

Fees and commissions are recognised when the Group satisfies the performance obligation, at fair value of the consideration received or
receivable based on a five-step model as set out below, unless included in the effective interest calculation.

The Group recognises Fees & Commission Income based on a five step model as set out in Ind AS 115:

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights

and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met.
Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good

or service to the customer.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that has more than one performance
obligation, the Group allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation. Fees for sale of services are accounted as and when the
service is rendered, provided there is reasonable certainty of its ultimate realisation.

Revenue from contracts with customers for sale of service is recognised when the services are transferred to customer at an amount that reflects

"'fﬁ'__’fﬁ?'ls!cLeratlon that the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those services. All fees are recognised when reasonable right of r€ overy

i5 estabhs d, revenue can be reliably measured and as and when they become due.
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(iv) Net gain on Fair value changes

Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as FVTPL held by the Group on the reporting date is recognised as an
unrealised gain / loss. In cases there is a net gain in the aggregate, the same is recognised in *Net gains on fair value changes” under Revenue
from operations and if there is a net loss the same is disclosed as “Net loss on fair value changes” under Expenses in the Statement of Profit and

Loss.
Similarly, any realised gain or loss on sale of financial instruments measured at FVTPL is recognised in net gain / loss on fair value changes,

However, net gain/loss on derecognition of financial instruments classified as amortised cost is presented separately under the respective head in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(V) Loan Processing Fees
Loan processing fees is collected towards processing of loan, is amortised on EIR basis over the expected tenure of the loan for MSME and

Housing Finance and over the contractual tenure of the loan for Construction finance and Indirect lending.

2.7 Expenses

(i) Finance costs

Finance costs on borrowings is paid towards availing of loan, is amortised on EIR basis over the contractual life of loan.

The EIR in case of a financial liability is computed

a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability to the gross carrying
amount of the amortised cost of a financial liability

b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash flows

¢. Including all fees paid between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other
premiums or discounts

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest expense with the corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the liability.

Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recognized as part of the carrying value of the financial liability and amortized over the
expected life using the effective interest method. These include fees and commissions payable to advisers and other expenses such as external
legal costs, Rating Fee etc, provided these are incremental costs that are directly related to the issue of a financial liability.

(ii) Retirement and other employee benefits

Short term employee benefit

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits
include short term compensated absences such as paid annual leave. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be
paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognised as an expense during the period. Benefits such as salaries and wages, etc.
and the expected cost of the bonus/ex-gratia are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Post-employment employee benefits
a) Defined contribution schemes
All the eligible employees of the Group who have opted to receive benefits under the Provident Fund and Employees State Insurance scheme,

defined contribution plans in which both the employee and the Group contribute monthly at a stipulated rate. The Group has no liability for future
benefits other than its annual contribution and recognises such contributions as an expense in the period in which employee renders the related
service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the Balance Sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the
deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for services received before the Balance Sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

b) Defined Benefit schemes

The Group provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees. The plan provides for lump sum payments to
employees upon death while in employment or on separation from employment after serving for the stipulated years mentioned under ‘The
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972". The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation,
carried out by an independent actuary at each Balance Sheet date, using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of
service as giving rise to an additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value of
the obligation under defined benefit plan are based on the market yields on Government Securities as at the Balance Sheet date.

Net interest recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation to the net
defined benefit liability or asset. The actual return on the plan assets above or below the discount rate is recognized as part of re-measurement of
net defined liability or asset through other comprehensive income. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ
from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, attrition rate, future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, these liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The Group fully contributes all ascertained liabilities to the Gratuity Fund created for the said purpose. Trustees administer contributions made to
the trust and contributions are invested in a scheme of insurance with the IRDA approved Insurance Companies.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined beneﬁt I|ab|I|ty), are recogmzed immediately in the balance sheet wnth a correspondlng debit or credlt to retained earnings through OCI in




(iii) Leases
The Group leases most of its office facilities under operating lease agreements that are renewable on a periodic basis at the option of the lessor

and the lessee. The lease agreements contain rent free periods and rent escalation clauses.

The Group assesses whether a contract contains a lease at the inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset, (ii) the Group
has substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset through the period of the lease, and (iii) the Group has the right to direct

the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a ROU asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements under
which it is a lessee, except for short-term leases and low value leases. ROU assets represent the Group’s right to use an underlying asset for the
lease term and lease liabilities represent the Group’s obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease. For short-term leases and low
value leases, the Group recognizes the lease payments as an expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The lease arrangements include options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities include
these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at
or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

ROU assets are depreciated from the date of commencement of the lease on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. For leases under which the rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate based on the information available at the date of
commencement of the lease in determining the present value of lease payments. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding
adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Group changes its assessment as to whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

(iv) Other income and expenses
All Other income and expense are recognized on accrual basis in the period they occur.

(v) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on internal/external factors.
An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
greater of the assets, net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset.

In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining
useful life.

(vi) Taxes
Current Tax
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from, or paid to, the

taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the
reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or
in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts, Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are only recognised for temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits if it is probable that future taxable
amounts will arise to utilise those temporary differences and losses. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and they relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity.

2.8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the net amount of short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash (short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less) and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. They are
held for the purposes of meeting short-term cash commitments (rather than for investment or other purposes).

e e,

Forf_ e'purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short- term deposits, as defined above. p
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2.9 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment, (if any). The total cost of

assets comprises its purchase price, freight, duties, taxes and any other incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management. Changes in the expected useful life
are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of tangible asset are added to its gross value only if it increases the future benefits of the existing
asset, beyond its previously assessed standards of performance and cost can be measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are

expensed off as and when incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated using the written down value method to write down the cost of property and equipment to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives which is in line with the estimated useful life as specified in Schedule II of the Act. The residual values, useful lives
and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Property plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised
in other income / expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year the asset is derecognised. The date of disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the date the recipient obtains control of that item in accordance with the requirements for determining when a
performance obliaation is satisfied in Ind AS 115.

2.10 Intangible assets
An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that

are attributable to it will flow to the Group.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of an intangible asset comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or infinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful
economic life. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangibie asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each

financial year-end.

Changes in the expected useful life, or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset, are accounted for
by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, which are then treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is presented as a separate line item in the statement of profit and loss. Amortisation on
assets acquired/sold during the year is recognised on a pro-rata basis to the Statement of Profit and Loss from / upto the date of acquisition/sale.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives. Intangible assets comprising of software are amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of 3 years, unless it has a shorter useful
life.

Gains or losses from derecognition of intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

2.11 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events, and it is probable that an

outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation.

When the effect of the time value of money is material, the enterprise determines the level of provision by discounting the expected cash flows at
a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific to the liability. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and
Loss net of any reimbursement.

2.12 Contingent Liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence

of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable
that an outflow of resouirces wili be required to settie the obligation. A contingent iiability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a
liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the financial statements.

2.13 Earning Per Share
The Group reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on Earnings per share. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing

the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividend and attributable taxes) by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity
shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. In computing the dilutive earnings
per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that either reduces the earnings per share or increases loss per share are included.
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2.14 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected. Although these estimates are based on
the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the
outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is inciuded in the following notes:

(i) Defined employee benefit assets and liabilities - Refer 2.7(ii)

(ii) Impairment of loans portfolio - Refer 2.5(vii)

(iii) Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method - Refer 2.6(i) and 2.7(i)

(iv) Lease accounting - Refer 2,7(iii)

(v) Impairment test of non-financial assets - Refer 2.7(v)

(vi) Useful life of property, plant, equipment and intangibles - Refer 2.9 & 2.10

(vii) Provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions - Refer 2.7(vi)
(viii) Recognition and Measurement of Provision and Contingencies - Refer 2.11 and 2.12

(ix) Determination of the fair value of financial instruments - Refer 2.5(ix)

(x) Business Model Assessment - Refer 2.5(i)

2.15 Recent amendments applicable from April 01, 2022
The following amendments to standards have been issued and will be effective from April 01, 2022. The Group is evaluating the requirements of
these standards, improvements and amendments and has not yet determined the impact on the financial statements.

* Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 103 - Business Combinations ~ Qualifications prescribed for recognition of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed, as part of applying the acquisition method — should meet the definition of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting under Ind AS (Conceptual Framework) issued by the ICAI at the acquisition date. Modification to the
exceptions to recognition principle relating to contingent liabilities and contingent assets acquired in a business combination at the acquisition
date.

¢ Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 109 — Financial Instruments — Modification in accounting treatment of certain costs incurred on
derecognition of financial liabilities.

» Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment — Modification in treatment of excess of net sale proceeds of items
produced over the cost of testing as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment.

* Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets — Modifications in application of recognition
and measurement principles relating to onerous contracts.

* |
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ote 3 - Cash an uivalents

(% in millians)
. As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars 2022 2021
Cash on hand 14.89 14.75
Chegues on hand 8.81 -
Balances with banks:
- in current accounts 1,101.36 1.691.05
- In Deposit accounts with original maturity of 3 months or less 2,100.00 -
Total 3,225.06 1,705.80
(% in millions)
- As at March 31,| As at March 31,
Particulars 2022 2021
Earmarked balan ith banks
- Orlginal Maturity more than 3 months 305.94 536.46
- Undlaimed Dividend Account 0.21 0.22
Total 306.15 536.68

Out of the above ¥ 184.60 Millions (March 31, 2021 - ¥ 185.67 Millions) balance in deposit accounts with banks are being earmarked towards

Borrowings from National Housing Bank.

Balance in deposit accounts with banks are being earmarked towards Overdraft facilities and agaisnt Customer Advance.

Deposits are made for varying period from 7 days to 10 years and earn interest at the respective fixed rate.

Note 5 - Receivables
(% in millions)
- As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars 2022 2021
Secured, considered good
-Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the due date of payment of payment - =
-Outstanding for a period less than six months 81.64 15.08
Total 81.64 15.08

Trade recelvables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days. The Group has assessed that, the impact of impairment of

trade receivables is immaterial and hence no impairment loss has been provided.

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Group either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or
other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Ageing schedule

1) Current vear

(% in millions)

Outstanding for foliowing periods from due date of payment

Not Due 6 months - 1

vear

Less than 6
months

Particulars

1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3
vears

Total

(1) Undisputed Trade
receivables - considered =
aood

81.64 - - -

81.64

(i) Undisputed Trade
receivables - which have _ N
significant increase in credit
|risk

(iiiy Undisputed Trade .
receivables - credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade
receivables - considered - - =
aood

(v) Disputed Trade
receivables - which have
significant increase in credit

Irisk

(vi) Disputed Trade
receivables - credit impaired

(2) Previous year

(% in millions)

6 months - 1
vear

Not Due Less than 6

month:

Particulars

1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3
years

Outstanding for fallowing periods from due date of payment

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade
receivables - considered
agood

15.03 0.04 0.01 -

15.08

(i) Undisputed Trade
receivables - which have . . _
significant increase in credit
Irisk

(iii) Undisputed Trade R -
receivables - credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade
receivables - considered “ =

aood

(v) Disputed Trade
receivables - which have _ .
significant increase in credit
risk

(vi) Disputed Trade . -
receivables - credit impaired




Note 6 - Loans

— Ib(; in R’\illions)
s at March 31,
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 2021
Total Total

Secured (Amortised Cost) -
Term Loans 64,413.67 48,005.46
Unsecured (Amortised Cost) -
Loan to employees 1.13 1.19
Total — Gross (A) 64,414.80 48,006.65
Less : Expected Credit Loss (1,706.77) (1,144.10)
Total — Net (A) 62,708.03 46,862.55
a) Secured by Tangible Assets 61,291.34 44,924.87
(b) Secured by Book Debts 3,122,33 3,080.59
(c) Unsecured 1.13 1.19
Total - Gross (B) 64,414.80 48,006.65
Less : Expected Credit Loss (1,706.77) (1,144.10)
Total - Net (B) 62,708.03 46,862.55
Loans in India

i) Public Sector - -

ii) Others 64,414.80 48,006.65
Total - Gross (C) 64,414.80 48,006.65
Less: Expected Credit Loss (1,706.77) (1,144.10)
Total - Net (C) 62,708.03 46,862.55

Note 1 - The Group's business model is to Collect contractual cash flows, being the payment of Principal and
Interest, accordingly the loans are measured at amortised cost.

Note 2 - Underlying for the term loans secured by tangible assets are properties.

Note 3 - The Group does not have any loans outside India.




(% inmillions)
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Investments At Fair Value At Fair Value
Through profitand | At Amortized Cost Total Through profitand | At Amortized Cost Total
== __loss loss
Investments In Mutual funds 2.304.43 = 2.304.43 4,394.08 = 4,394.,0
Investments in Commercial Paper - - - - 959.13 959.13
Investments in Debt Securities *
- Debt Instrument . 247.66 247 66 . 952,76 2.7
- Pass Through Certificates = 1,174.69 1,174.64 £ 1,729.83 1,729.83
Investments in Equity Instruments 48.11 - 48,11 38.73 = 38.73
Total - Gross (A) 2,352.54 1,422.30 3,774.84 4,432.81 3,641.72 8,074.53
i) Investments outside India = - = : -
1} Inwetmante i Tdjs 2,352.54 142230 3.774.84% 4,432.81 364173} 8.074.53 I
Total (B) 2,352.54 1,422.30 3,774.84 4,432.81 3,641.72 | 8,074.53
2 As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2022 2021
Numbers/Units Numbers/Units
Investment in Equity
L. Equity Shares of CARE Ratings Limited of Rs.10/~ each fully paid up 94,742.00 94,242.00
ent in ds
1. ICICI Prudential Ultra Short Term Fund - Direct Plan - Growth 52,50,561.00 74,90,392.66

2, 1CICT Pru, Fleating Interest Fund -Direct Growth 9,18,910.39

3. HOFC Low Duration Fund Direct Growth = 3,76,034.86

4, Aditya Biria Sun Life Banking & PSU Debt Fund - DG - £,93,806.12

5. Nippon India Floating Rate Fund - DG = 83,80,194.95

&, HDFC Corporate Bond Fund . 2,02,54,665.89

7. Aditya Biria Sun Life Savings Fund - DG 6.76.389.73 1.88,159.74

8. HDFC Ultra Short Tenn Fund 83.64.763.47

9. ICICI Prudential Money Market Fund Begular Growth 1,98,269.03 -

10. ICICT Prodental Maney Market Fund Direct Grawth 16,29,143.98

i1, Wippan India Money Market Fund Cirect Growth 1,85.170.45

12. Aditya Birla Sun Life Money Manager Fund - Direct Growih 6,659,388 31

13, Aditya Berla Sun Lifz Liguid Fund - Dwect Growth 5.83,099.82

14, Nippon Tndian Liguid Fund Direct Grosth 38,439.85

15, 1CICT Prudential Liguid Fund . 2,02,667.711

16, Kotak Short term Fund = 34,57,849.03

17, Aditya Birfa Suniife Liguid Fund . 1,50.823.16
12,669,066

18. Baroda Liguid Fued

P

[T, TCI Brudeat

30 Kotak Liguid Fund E 36,072.83
21, SBI Ligquid Fund 31,046.09
23, UTI Liuid Fund = 23,852.06
#3. Aditya Biria Suniife Money Manager Fund - 13,95,891.84
24, LTI Money Markst Fund = 1,25,600.20
25, Nippon India Money Market Fund - 1,24,459.18
2b. ICICI Prugential Uitra Short Fund = B7.83.819.97
#7. Awis Ultra Short Fund = 75,76,459.83
2ZB. ICICI Prudential Savings Fund = 5,74,082.59
29. Kotak Low Duration Fund 36,052.05
30. -Aditya Birla Sunlife Fioating Rate Fund - 4,83,024.04
31. ICICT Prudential Flaating Interest Fund - 3,10,073.14
Investment in Bonds

1. Aditya Birla Finance Limited SR PPMLD K1 BR NCD 04MY21 FYRSIOLAC - 130.00
3. 8 505, Shriram T ransport Finance Co. Ltd - SE-0-14 8.5 LD 16062 FYRGIDLAL - 150.00
3. B.85% Shriram Transport Finance Co. o - SR-D-11 5.85 NLD D38s21 [VRSIOLAL ] 40.00
4. Shriram City Unign Finance Co. LW - 51 TR 1 9.55 NCD 30AP21 FYASIOND o 3.50.000.00
5 Shriram Transpart Fnance Co. Lid - SRF-16 OPT 1 NCD 3IMYZL FYAGLULAL = 200,00
£.Edelweiss Financial Services Lid - 11 ACD 0500123 FVASIDLAC 250,00 =
Investment in Commercial Papers:

1. ADANT ENTERPRISES LIMITED - 1815 CP 235EF1 = 1.000.00
o4 ADANT ENTERFRISES LIMITED - 1858 CP HSEPZ] = 100000
Inw entin Pass Throu ortificates

1. INDIAN RECETVABLE TRUST 2019 SERIES 5 - SERIES Al PTC 0IMR19 = 1,750.00
[Z_INDIAN RECETVABLE TRUST 2019 SERIES & - SERIES AZ FTC DIMRID Z316.00 2.318.00

X2
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Note 8 - Other Financial Assets

(X in_millions) _
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Security Deposits 32.30 23.43
Interest Accrued but not due on Commercial Papers - 3.68
Interest Accrued but not due on Debt Instruments 2.03 43.06
Interest Accrued but not due on PTC 6.08 -
Receivable on sale of Investment Equity share = 27.50
Spread receivable on assigned portfolio 168.45 -
Advertisement Income Receivable 11.62 14.99
Other Receivable 1.66 0.48
Total 222.14 113.14
Note 9 - Current Tax Assets (Net)
(% in millions)
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Advance Tax 100.38 82.63
[net of provision for tax of ¥ 3,129.87 Millions (March 31,
2021 % 1,896.46 Millions)]
Total 100.38 82,63
Note 10 - Deferred Tax Assets
The major components of deferred tax assets and liabilities are :
(% in millions)
. As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Particulars Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
a) Depreciation 24.25 - 22.95 -
b) Provision for Employee Benefits 15.21 - 12.63 -
¢) Unmortised fees on borrowings = 1.38 - 4.36
d) Impairment allowance for financial assets 359.08 = 195.69 =
e) Unmortised fees on loans 4.20 - 13.75 -
f) MAT Credit Entitlement - - 8.08 -
) Financial Instruments at FVTPL 0.75 = - 3.81
h} Others 7.12 - 12.36 -
i) Gain on derecognition of financial instruments - 42.40 - -
Total 410.61 43.78 265.46 8.17
Net Deferred tax assets 366.83 257.29
Note 11 - Investment Properties
{(Tin |rri|ilun:='£
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 %
Investment Properties 6.67
Total - 6.67
(% in millions)
Cost or Deemed Cost As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 6.67 8.82
Additions during the year - -
Disposals 2.21 2.15
Transferred to Assets held for sale 4.46 -
Balance at the end of the year = 6.67
* Investment Properties are in the nature of freehold properties and fair value of the properties is ¥ 25.19 millions as on March 31, 2021
Note 13 - Other Non-Financial Assets
(Xin millions)
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Capital Advances 156.95 148.06
Less: Provision on Capital Advances (3.71) (3.71)
Net Capital Advances 153.24 144.35
Assets Held for sale 47.44 48.24
Less: Provision on Assets held for sale (42.98) (44.48)
Net Assets Held for Sale 4.46 3.76
Prepaid expenses 35.33 24.04
Accrued Income 170.46 8.61
Deferred lease rentals = 9.65
GST Input Credit - 0.47
Advance to vendor 7.59 11.91
Other Assets 4.66 1.55
Total 375.74 204.34

& E’O \
10712201 1S
o WIN0ET2  fem
W MUMBAL S

PR




wuf )

189% 99°ST 95°18 - €961 €619 T L0l - 8V'8T YL8L [ZL
18°91 99'5¢ 9518 €961 €6'19 TCL0 = 982 bLBL SIEMIJOS
TTOT'IE [44 14 15 [44 14 13 120T'T0 [447 453 P— suom 10 nady e &
Yyolep je sy youep je sy youey je sy suoipnpaq €84 343 Jod Judy e sy yoiep je sy uoRaNpaq PRV TZ0Z'10 l1dv 38 sy sie|ndipued
¥20718 13N NOLLYSILHOWY ONV NOILYID3ud3d 20718 SSOUD
SUD|[[itu U] 2]

1 s)9sse djqibuejuy
0Z'ET 01 TSET 00 1ejol
0T €C 07T 7S EC 00 9JeMIJ05

ZT0T'TE .
yosep e sy suononpag suonIppy TZ0Z'10 jt4dy Je sy siejnopued
ANNOWY S5045D
SUCHI Ul &)
$JuUdWdo|aARP J9pun $33SSY Jjqibuejuy
T9'bsSC Z0'8IE T9'vrE 9/'8Y 116 LTYIE 9799 [AZ1] 81191 88898 18301
FO'GRT L0°ECE /8'6CT 0T'He 4 N4 STT1T ¥6T5E S/'LE 06°€6 64°96¢C 35N 0 4B
Z6C STE 9L 600 [2A1] 0L 86 710 = v6'6 UbHEfeIsul [Eonea
861 5007 S9°Ch T¥'S ¥0'9 0Tk 02729 858 88'6 0b'T9 SSPIOA
8% 109 T ic I¥'E b5'C SERT EbEE S/'E 96°'E TTEE SJUSWdINDY 99LJ0
&R 4 B6'0F 08T St b E0°bE ZE Gk OF'7 751 TE 05 NIXII P M,
0E9T G5Ob 88 BEET 0870Z [E64 £8'8TT 9/ kT 7618 976 SiEmpieq 19nawoy
0L 0¢'s S9°/LT = 1871 bE'GT [ £ 2 S8 5as|UW3id Plogasea]
12T 01'¢ 090 = 110 60 04T = - 0T SBUiping
Tsbuipiing
T202'1E °20T'tE zT0T'1E T20Z'10 zzo0T'1e .
yoie je sy yolep je sy yoie je sy suowanpag €34 943 Jod 1Mdy je sy Yyoie je sy suoipnpag suomppy 120210 j1dv 3e sy siejmipged
ND018 13N NOILVSILHOWY aNV NOILVID3udad MJ0718 SSO¥D

: Juawdinba pue jue|d ‘AJadoid

TIE9 JuelIn)y




0 0o
SO

8T°8T 18'91 €6'T9 - 89°0C STTY vL8L - TE6T EV'65 1e101
8T'8T 18'91 £6'19 - 89'0¢ STTh bl 8L TE'6T €65 QIEMIJOS |
0z0Z'TE TZOZ'TE 120Z'TE 0Z0Z‘T0 1Z02'1€ npo suoni 70 1udy 3e s
yolep je sy yolep 3e sy yauep je sy suondnpaq 1E2A 3y} Jod judy je sy yaiey je sy suenanpaq uonippy 0Z02°10 1dy je Sy siejndied
¥J078 13N NOILVSILMOWY ANV NOLLVID3¥d3d 2018 SS0¥D
SUDJI Ul 3]
: sjosse d|qibuejuy
020 S6°Z 29'9 86'T [ejoL
00 S6'L 499 86'T DIBMYOS
120Z°1€ '
ey 18 sy suonopnpag SuonIpPpY 0Z0Z'10 Iudy je sy siejnonied
LNNOWY SSO¥D
{SUopjil Ul &)
1JuswdojaAsp Japun S)assy Jjqibuejur
EE'S6C T9'¥ST LTYTE +0'8 'y 68°LET 85°895 626 S6'vY TTEES =301
PO'LTE P9'S8T STTTT = S6'FS 098 64796¢ - S5°E7 FCELE 950 JO JUbRy
16°€ 26'C 0L - 20T 009 ¥6'6 3 070 166
1102 8£°'6T [ LE'D £6°9 9F'SE 0b'19 o1’z £6'9 4568 SS19IqoA
85'9 8'Y SE'8C 95°0 bT'E LL5T TeEE £9°0 0S'T SE'ZE SiUadmby S930
16'6T 82°9T €0'pE 80°0 €b'S 89'8¢ TE0S $1°0 98'T 65'BF S9INn]X14 pue SInjjuing
00791 0E'9T LE'SL £0°L 6£°0T 1024 2916 [4 XA 80'TT 10°88 ale H 0,
pias 10°¢ #8'5T - S¥'E BE'ET S8'2C = SB'TC Sa5(Wald poyIsea]
(£33 12T 6F0 = 170 BE'D 0Lz = - 0L shuipjing
0zoz'1e TZ0Z'1E TZ02'1€ 0207’10 TZOT'TE :
yolepy je sy yolep je sy yorep je sy suenpnpaq 1E3A 3 104 |udy je sy yaiey je sy suenpnpaq 0202‘10 jHdv 3e sy siejndiHed
A2078 13N NOILLYSILHOWY ONV NOILVIDIud3ag AJ018 SSOU9

SUOJ|jIW U] 3)

juswdinbd pue jue|d ‘Ajiadoad

11BOA SNOIARId



Note 14 - Payables

Trade Payables (% in millions)
. As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars 2022 2021
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises* 1.75 -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 333.10 74.94
Total 334.85 74.94
(.in millions)
. As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars 2022 2021
| 1) Principal amount due and remaining unpaid 1.75 -
2) Interest due on (1) above and the unpaid interest = =
3) Interest paid on all delayed payment under the MSMED Act - -
4) Payment made beyond the appointed day during the vear = -
5) Interest due and payable for the period of delay other than (3) above = =
6) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid = =
7) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in succeeding years -
Total 1.75 -
Ageing schedule
1) Current year (< in millions)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not Due Less than 1 More than 3 Total
1-2 years 2-3 years
year years
(i) MSME - 1.75 - - - 1.75
(ii) Others 325.10 6.21 0.24 1.55 - 333.10
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - = 2
(iii) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
(1) Previous year (% in millions)
Outstanding for followinag periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not Due Less than 1 More than 3 Total
1-2 years 2-3 years
year years
i) MSME - - - - - -
(ii) Others 63.08 6.46 1.60 0.46 3.34 74.94
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME | | |
(iii) Disputed dues - Others : - -] é - |
Other Payables (% in_millions)
. As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars 2022 2021
Accrued Employee Benefit Expense 78.25 72.27
Total 78.25 72.27
(1) Current year (< In millions)
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not Due Less than 1 More than 3 Total
1-2 years 2-3 years
year years
(i) Others 78.20 0.05 - s 78.25
(2) Previous year (% in millions)
OQutstanding for foliowing periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not Due Less than 1 More than 3 Total
1-2 years 2-3 years
vear vears
(i) Others 64.35 6.40 0.74 0.78 72.27
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N 15 - Debt securiti

(% in millions)
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Particulars
At Amortised Cost Total At Amortised Cost Total

Non-Convertible debentures 4,330.90 4,330.90 6,741.30 6.,741.30
Total (A) 4,330.90 4,330.90 6,741.30 6,741.30
Debt securities in India 4,330.90 4,330.90 6,741.30 6,741.30
Debt securities outside India - = = =
Total (B) 4,330.90 4,330.90 6,741.30 6,741.30
Terms of repayment, nature of security & rate of interest in case of Non Convertible Debtenture.

(¥ in millions)

Name of Security Maturity date |Terms of repayment c°"p°:; tinterest As at March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021

Series 4 09-08-2029 N 10.23% 1,500.00 1,500.00
(FV %10 Lacs) Bullet payment on maturity
Series 8 23-07-2023 . . 8.80% 333.33 500.00
(FV %10 Lacs) Payable in 3 equal annual instalments
Series 6 05-06-2023 . 9.00% 500.00 500.00
(FV €10 Lacs) Bullet payment on maturity
Series 5 22-05-2023 y 8.80% 2,000.00 2,000.00
(FV 210 Lacs) Bullet payment on maturity
Series 9 04-02-2022 " 8.35% - 1,500.00
(FV 710 Lacs) Bullet payment on maturity
Series 7 16-01-2022 N 8.25% - 500.00
(FV %10 Lacs) Bullet payment on maturity
Series 1 28-01-2022 " § 8.00% - 250,00
(FV %10 Lacs) Bullet payment on maturity
Total (A) 4,333.33 6,750.00
Less : Unamortised borrawing cost (B) (2.43) (8.70)
Total (A+B) 4,330.90 6,741.30
Discl e under lation 53(e) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015:
Debenture Trustees:
Catalyst Trusteeship Limited
604, Windsor, Off CST Road,
Kalina, Santacruz East,
Mumbai - 400098.
Contact : + 91 (022) 49220555
Discl e underr lation 53(f) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Discl e Requi ) lations, 2015:

Related party transaction - Refer Note 42

Disclosure under regulation 54(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015:

Asset Cover
The above NCD's are secured against first pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation on the immovable property, loan receivables/book debts, bank balances and investments of the
Group with asset cover range of 1.25 to 1.33 times.
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(% in millions)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Notional Amounts *

Fair Value - Assets

Fair Value -
Liabilities

Notional Amounts Fair Value - Assets

Fair Value -

Liabilities

PartI

(1) Currency Derivatives:

-Forwards

6,129,62

12.42

Total Derivative Financial Instruments

6,129.62

12.42

Part II

Included in above (Farl 1) are derivatives
held for hedging and risk management
pulposes s follows,

(i) Cashfiow Hedging

6,129.62

12.92

-Currency Derivallves- : Forwards

Total Derivative Financial Instruments

6,129.62

12.42

* Notional amount of the respective currency has been converted as at March 31,2022 exchange rate.




N 16B - Borrowi Than Debt Securities) - orti Co

(% In millions)

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Secured
Term Loans from Banks* 37,017.16 26,314.10
Term Loans from others** 6,034.26 4,633.16
Unsecured
Loan from Director = 0.02
Loan Repayable on Demand
From Banks (Cash Credit) 701.55 47.29
Total (A) 43,752.97 30,994.57
Borrowings in India 43,752.97 30,994.57
Borrowings outside India » =
Total (B) 43,752.97 30,994.57

* Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of Group’s loan receivables, bank balances with asset cover of 1.20 times in favour of borrowing from SBI of ¥

1,640.80 millions.

Borrowings other than above: First pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation of the Group's loan receivables / book debts, bank balances and investments

with asset cover of 1.10 to 1.33 times.

** Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of Group’s loan receivables with minimum assets cover of 1.25 times in favour of borrowing from NABARD of X 3,600

millions and asset cover of 1.25 to 1.35 times in favour of borrowing from NHB of X 1,546.76 millions.

Borrowings other than above: First pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation of the Group’s loan receivables / book debts, bank balance and investments

with asset cover in the range of 1.15 to 1.33 times.

Terms of repayment & rate of interest in case of Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)

(% in millions)

Nature of Facility Maturity Range Interest Range As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Term Loans 0-3 yrs 7.50% - 9.50% 5,770.10 2,707.64
Term Loans 3-5yrs 7.50% - 9.50% 17,623.69 17,316.58
Term Loans 5-7 yrs 7.50% - 9.50% 16,561.00 7,694.94
Term Loans Beyond 7 years 7.50% - 9.50% 1,749.99 1,499.99

Refinance from NHB 0-3 yrs 3% - 6.50% 347.20 =

Refinance from NHB 3-5yrs 3% - 6.50% 4.85 473.60
Refinance from NHB 5-7 yrs 3% - 6.50% 795.91 1,007.81
Refinance from NHB Beyond 7 years 3% - 6.50% 398.80 466.75
Total (A) 43,251.54 31,167.31
Less : Unamortised borrowing cost (B) (200.10) (220.05)
Total (A+B) 43,051.44 30,947.26
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Note 17 - Other Financial Liabilities

(X in millions)
Particulars As at March 31,2022 7S atz':;rlc" 31,
Book Overdraft 2,817.52 2,008.13
Unclaimed dividend 0.21 0.22
Margin money received from Customer 139.98 179.81
Advances from customers 1.55 3.29
Lease Liability 248.20 211.74
Interest Accrued but not due on borrowings 238.17 372.98
Other Financial Liabilities 63.18 0.37
Total 3,508.81 2,776.54
Note 18 - Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
(% in millions)
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As atzh;;;ch 31,
Provision for Tax 27.89 148.86
[net of advance tax of ¥ 740.87 Millions (March 31, 2021 ¥ 1,131.56)]
Total 27.89 148.86
Note 19 - Provisions
(% in millions)
Particulars AsatMarch 31,2022 AS atz':;'fh 31,
Provision on non-fund exposure 93.76 38.61
Provision for Interest on Interest Waiver = 34.39
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity 13.15 6.38
- Compensated Absences 59.28 46.29
Total 166.19 125.67
Note 20 - Other Non - financial liahilities
(X in millions)
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As atzl\;;rlch 31,
Statutory Remittances 90.70 23.67
Total 90.70 23.67
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Note 21 - Equity Share Capital

(% In millions)
_ As at March 31,
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 2021
AUTHORISED
36,00,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 2 each 720.00 720.00
{Previous Year 36,00,00,000 Equity Shares of % 2 each)
720.00 720.00
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID UP
17,56,54,055 Equity Shares of % 2 each 351.31 350.57
(Previous Year 17,52,85,355 Equity Shares ot ¥ 2 each) | |
[ 351.31 | 350.57

Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Particulars Amount Amount
Number (¥ in millions) Number (¥ in millions)
Equity shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year 17,52,85,355 350.57 17,51,34,805 350.27
Issued during the year 3,68,700 0.74 1,50,550 0.30
Equity shares outstanding as at the end of the year 17,56,54,055 351.31 17,52,85,355 350.57

During the year the Holding Company has allotted 3,68,700 equity shares of X 2/- each for consideration of ¥ 21.60 Millions as ESOPs. In previous year the Holding
Company had allotted 1,50,550 equity shares of ¥ 2/- each for consideration of ¥ 11.38 Millions as ESOPs.

During the period of five years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date, the Holding Company has not issued any shares without payment being received in
cash or by way of bonus shares. Further there have been no shares bought back.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5 percent shares in the Holding Company are given below:

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Number % Number %
Capri Global Holdings Pvt. Ltd. 6,78,24,643 38.61% 6,78,24,643 38.69%
Rameshchandra Sharma = 0.00% 4,37,64.930 24.97%
Capri Global Advisory Services Pvt. Ltd. 1,75,17,060 9.97% 1,75,17,060 9.99%
Rajesh Sharma 4,59,00,035 26.13% 3 0.00%
Details of Promoters holdina shares in the Holdina Company are given below:
promoter Name As at March 31,0/1:.0;2.:()“' As at March 31, 2021 % change during
Number of shares shares Number of shares % of total shares the year

Individuals / Hindu Undivided Family
Ramesh Chandra Sharma 0.00% ~4.37.64,630 24.97% -100.00%
Ramesh Chandra Sharma Huf - 0.00%| 21.35.405 1.22% -100.00%
Rajesh Sharma 500 0.00% 500 0.00% 0.00%
Jahnavi_Sharma 100 0.00% 100 0.00% 0.00%
Jinisha Sharma 100 0.00% 100 0.00% 0.00%
Raahav _Sharma 100 0.00% 100 0.00% 0.00%
Promoter Trust
Raijesh Sharma 4,59.00.035 26.13% 0.00% 100.00%
Bodies Corporate
Capri Global Holdinas Private Limited 6.7/8.24.643 38.61% 6.78.24.643 38.69% 0.00%
fopT V00l AdVISaTy Services Private 1,75,17,060 9.97% 1,75,17,060 9.99% 0.00%

Total 13,12,42,538 74.72% 13,12,42,538 74.87% 0.00%

Terms/Rights attached to equity shares:
1. The Holding Company has only one class of equity share having a par value of ¥ 2/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The
Holding Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees.

2. In the event of liquidation of the Holding Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Holding Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Shares reservation :

In FY 2021-22, 30,40,800 shares (FY 2020-21 15,80,45 shares) of ¥ 2 each towards outstanding employee stock options granted (Refer Note 46)

Obiective for managing capital:
The Group maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and is meeting the capital adequacy requirements of the regulator,
Reserve Bank of India (RBI). The adequacy of the Holding Company’s capital is monitored using, among other measures, the regulations issued by RBI.
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Note 22 - Other Equity

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2020
Statutory Reserve pursuant to Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934
Balance as per the last Financial Statements 2,407.96 2,120.04
Add: Amount transferred from surplus balance in the Statement of Profit and Loss 323.77 287.92
Closing balance 2,731.73 2,407.96
Stafutory Reserve Saction 20C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987
Balance as per the last Financial Statements 158.30 91.10
Add: Amount transferred from surplus balance in the Statement of Profit and Loss 86.40 67.20
Closing balance 244.70 158.30
Securities premium
Balance as per the last financial statements 4,491.80 4,471.01
Add: On account of ESOP Exercised 49.34 20.79
Closing balance 4,541.14 4,491.80
General Reserve
Balance as per the last financial statements 642.05 642.05
Closing balance 642.05 642.05
Other reserves & surplus - Employvee stock option outstanding
Balance as per the last Financial Statements 78.77 57.92
Add/Less: Amount transferred from surplus balance in the Statement of Profit and
Loss 26.28 20.85
Closing balance 105.05 78.77
Retained earnings (Surplus in profit & loss account)
Surplus in statement of profit and loss 9,043.56 7,659.46
Profit for the year 2,050.41 1,769.55
Other Comprehensive Income (4.92) 4.71
Dividend Paid (70.15) (35.04)
Transfer to Reserve Fund Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 (86.40) (67.20)
Transfer to Reserve Fund under Section 45-IC of Reserve Bank of India Act,1934 (323.77) (287.92)
Closing Balance 10,608.73 9,043.56
[Total 18,873.40 | 16,822.44

Securities premium

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as
issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

General reserve

Under the erstwhile Companies Act 1956, general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net income at a specified percentage
in accordance with applicable regulations. The purpose of these transfers was to ensure that if a dividend distribution in a given year is
more than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Group for that year, then the total dividend distribution is less than the total distributable
results for that year. Consequent to introduction of Companies Act 2013, the requirement to mandatorily transfer a specified percentage
of the net profit to general reserve has been withdrawn. However, the amount previously transferred to the general reserve can be
utilised only in accordance with the specific requirements of Companies Act, 2013.

Statutory Reserve pursuant to Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934
Every non-banking financial company is required to create a reserve fund and transfer therein a sum not less than twenty per cent of its
net profit every year as disclosed in the statement of profit and loss before any dividend is declared.

Statutory Reserve pursuant to Section 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

Every housing finance institution which is a company shall create a reserve fund and transfer therein a sum not less than twenty per cent
of its profit every year as disclosed in the profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared. Explanation - A housing finance
institution creating and maintaining any special reserve in terms of clause (viii) of sub-section (1) of section 36 of the Income-tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961) may take into account any sum transferred by it for the year to such special reserve for the purposes of this sub-
section. For the previous comparative periods, company has maintained transfer to statutory reserve on profit calculated under erstwhile

GAAP.

Employee Stock Option Reserve
This reserve is used to record the employee stock options which are outstanding. The said reserve will be utilised for issuance of share to

the eligible employees.




Note 23 - Interest Income

(% in millions)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

On Financials Assets
measured at

On Financials Assets
measured at

Amortised Cost Amortised Cost
Interest on Loans 8,100.22 6,679.83
Interest on deposits 32.71 42.49
Interest income from investments 260.83 12.89
Interest on Others 2.02 =
Total 8,395.78 6,735.21
Note 24 - Fee and commission Income
(X In milons)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Application Fees 39.81 20.74
Car Loan Commission 466.96 -
Total 506.77 20.74
Note 25 - Net gain on fair value changes
(% in millions)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

(A) Net gain on financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss

(i) On trading portfolio

- Investments in Shares 144.75 126.68

- Mutual Funds and Bonds 91.42 161.55
(B) Others - -
(C) Total Net gain on fair value changes 236.17 288.23
(D) Fair Value changes:

- Realised 228.95 273.10

- Unrealised 7.22 15.13
Total Net gain on fair value changes 236.17 288.23
Note 26 - Other Operating Income

(% in millions)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Advertisement Income - 153.95
Foreclosure Fees 80.19 61.85
Bad Debts Recovered 0.34 1.10
Legal Charges Received 13.93 7.49
Other Charges 148.39 91.08
Total 242.85 315.47
Note 27 - Other Income
(% in millions)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Advertisement Income 113.60 g
Profit on sale of Investment Property 2.93 3.28
Service Fees - 1.77
Write Back 7.47 =
Interest on Income Tax Refund -

Other = 4.00

Total /<=~ 128.00
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Note 28 - Finance Costs

(% in_millions)
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Interest on borrowings Other than debt Securities 2,721.83 2,361.41
Interest on Bank Overdraft - 0.32
Interest on debt securities 553.40 497.48
Interest on Bank CC 7.12 2.28
Interest on Lease Liability 26.12 25.56
Total 3,308.47 2,887.05
Note 29 - Impairment on financial instruments (at Amortised Cost)

(% in millions)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Loans and advances to customers 562.59 544.04
Loan commitments 55.16 0.64
Bad Debts Written Off 438.93 -
Total impairment loss 1,056.68 544.68

Note 30 - Employee Benefit Expense

(X in millions)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Salaries and Bonus 1,569.47 900.06
Contribution to provident and other funds 84.65 47.81
Share Based Payments to employees 54.78 31.20
Staff Training and Welfare Expenses 37.14 14.72
Total 1,746.04 993.79
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Note 31 - Other expenses

(% in millions)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Advertising 6.17 6.24
'Auditors’ Remuneration 5.76 5.7
Bad Debts Written Off - 62.32
Banking Charges 7.44 9.19
Business Development Expenses 22.92 6.98
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses* 44.92 37.47
Directors' Fees and Commission 7.93 7.74
Electricity Charges 13.07 9.00
Legal Expenses 224.61 124.89
Loss On Sale of Fixed Assets 1.02 0.20
Recruitment Expenses 36.12 13.93
Membership & Subscription Expenses 2.47 2.45
Processing Fees on Co Lending 0.03 -
Postage, Telephone and Fax 33.98 25.84
Printing and Stationery 21.65 10.50
Rent 28.42 9.08
| Software Expenses 62.39 35.86
Filing & Other Fees to ROC 0.09 0.12
Travelling and Conveyance 103.85 55.50
Service fees* 3.96 4.05
NOC Review Charges 13.52 18.43
Write off - Others 1.34 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 49.23 38.12
Total 690.89 483.61

*The above CSR expenses includes ¥ 1.22 millions pertaining to the previous year funds utilization which was transferred to the
designated bank account in line with the notification No. G.S.R. 40(E) dated 22nd January, 2021 issued the Companies

(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Amendment Rules, 2021

1. Auditors' Remuneration

(% in millions)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

a) For Statutory Audit 1.66 1.70
b) For Tax Audit 0.38 0.40
c) For Limited Review 1.08 1.05
d) For other services (Certification Fees and Interim audit Fees) 2.09 2.20
e) For reimbursement of expenses 0.08 0.12
f) GST to the extent of ITC not availed 0.47 0.23
Total 5.76 5.70

2. Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses
(% in millions)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Gross Amount Required to be spent during the year

44.92

37.47

Amount spent during the year on CSR

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset

(ii) On purposes other than (i) above

44.92

37.47

Shortfall at the end of the year

Total of previous years shortfali

Reason for shortfail

NA

NA

Nature of CSR activities

Refer note 3 below

Refer note 3 below

Details of related party transactions in relation to CSR expenditure as per

relevant Accounting Standard

Refer note no. 42

Refer note no. 42

3. Nature of CSR activities - Women Empower, Livelihood Initiative, Education Initiative, Health Initiative (including nutrition

project), COVID-19 Relief support, Animal Welfare

4. Disclosure in relation to undisclosed income - There are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of account
which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

5. Details of CryEto currency or Virtual currency - The Group has not traded or invested in crypto currel

currency during-the financial year
,5@. e Tarci
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Note 32 - Other Comprehensive Income

(X in millions)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement loss (gain) on defined benefit plan (0.47 6.27

Income tax relatina to these items 012 (1.56)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss

Fair Value Gain on time value of forward element of forward contract (6.10) -

Income tax relating to these items 1.53 -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (4.92) 4.71
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N 3 - E

1.1 it quality of ts
(% in millions)
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Particulars
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Internal rating grade #
Performing
High grade 24,45B.84 - - 24,458.84 18,508.18 = - 18,508.18
Standard grade 1,468.90 - = 1,468.90 1,942.41 - - 1,942.41
Sub-standard grade = 1,204.54 - 1,204.54 - 976.79 = 976.79
Past due but not impaired - 1,564.06 = 1,564.06 - 736.26 - 736.26
Restructured - 1,937.56 |_ - 1,937.56 - 1,817.97 - 1.817.97
Non Performing
Individually impaired = d 1,276.66 1,276.66 - 1,389.58 1,389.58
Total 25,927.74 4,706.16 1,276.66 31,910.56 20,450.59 3,531.02 1,389.58 25,371.19
ECL allowances in relation
(% in millions)
_ As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Particulars
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amoun ning balance 20,450.58 3,531.02 1,389.58 25,371.18 17,700.21 1,664.22 733.20 20,097.63
New assets originated 11,510.38 - = 11,510.38 7.447.60 = = 7,447 .60
Assets derecoqnised or repaid (excluding write offs) (4,010.62) (519.24) (264.42) (4,794.28) (2,488.39) (110.65) (152.36) {2,751.40)
| Transfers to Stage 1 549.53 (334.83) (214.70) - 442.02 (389.29) (52.78 -
Transfers to Stage 2 (2,205.65) 2,287.75 (82,10} = (2,208.77) 2,231.76 (22.99) -
Transfers to Stage 3 (265.18) (203.52) 468.70 E (442.09) (298.73) 740.82 -
Other movements {on account of chanae fn EAD) = . = E - 433.66 157.89 631.55
Amounts written off (101.30) _(55.02) (20.40) (176.72) - x 54.20 54.20
Gross carrying amount closing balance 25,927.74 4,706.16 1,276.66 31,910.56 20,450.58 3,531.02 1,389,58 25,371.18
Number of Loans 17,766 2,385 622 20,773 14,113 1,462 566 16,141
ncifiation of ECL balance is given below:
{T in millions)
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL allowance - opening balance 135.58 381.95 394.91 912.44 B3.86 109.36 256.43 449.65
New assets orginated 79.66 = - 75.66 45,59 - = 45,59
ts deri i id {excluding wri (21,79} (66.34) (80.72) (168.80) (9.83) (11.87) (52.36) {74.06}
Transfers to Stage 1 6.08 (4.78) (1.30) - 35.89 (23.51) (12.38) -
Transfers to Stage 2 (710.43) 21687 (6.49) - {10.53) 15.87 (5.34) -
Transfers to Staoe 3 (67.13) (59.67) 126.50 - (2.11) (17.78) 16.89 -
Other movements (an account of chanage in EAD) 268.29 223.94 18.77 511.00 (7.29] 309.88 202.49 505.08
Amounts written off (1.16) (0.89) _(58.85) (60.90) (13.82) (13.82)
ECL all 2 - closing balance 189.15 691.08 393.17 1,273.40 135.58 381.95 394.91 912.44

#in | rati classi on below basis
Grade Classification Basis Stage

High grade 0 DPD Stage 1

Standard arade 1-30 DPD Stage 1

Sub-standard grade 31-60 OPD Stage 2

Past due but not impaired 61-90 DPD Stage 2

Restructured <90 DPD & Stage 2

Resturctured
Individually impaired >90 DPD & Stage 3
Restructured
Note - Higher grade has been considered for Customers having 2 or more loans
Loan Given Default (In %)
Particulars Asat March 31, 2022| A€ at;:f;fh 31,
LGD 27.04 25.50
Probability of Default {In 9%)
Particul As at March 31,
articulars As at March 31, 2022 2021
Stage 1 2.56 2.60
Stage 2 36.92 42.44
Stage 3 100.00 100.00
Details of collateral r ved against loan lio :

Nature of security against advances :

based on the highest DPD

Underline securities for the assets secured by tangible assets - Property & and book debts.

Advances (LTV band wise) :

Gross carrying Cumulative loss

LTV ratio

of ad e: e
<= 50% 11,57B.63 417.57
>50% <= 70% 18.462.35 685.82
>70% <=90% 1,867.77 170.00
>90% <=100% 1.81 0.01

Credit impaired ad

es (LTV band wise) :

LTV ratio

Gross carrying Cumulative loss

>90% <=100%

of ad e Nl e
<= L0% 415.26 125.13
=>50% <= 70% 716.55 216.84
>70% <=00% 144.85 51.20
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3.1- ion Finance L

p 5 i ali ass
(% in millions)
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Internal rating grade #
Performing
High grade 15,209.18 - = 15,209.18 10,990.72 = - 10,990.72
Standard grade 3.05 - - 3.05 27.73 = 27.73
Sub-standard grade = 569.57 E 569.57 = 791.41 791.41
Past due but not impaired - — = o = i = ¥ = -
Non Performing
Individually impaired 5 = 23.18 23.18 = < 1675 16.75
Total 15,212,.23 569.57 23.18 15,804.98 11,018.45 791.41 16.75 11,826.61
ECLa ces in relation
(% in millions)
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount opening balance 11,018.45 791.41 16.75 11,826.61 9,698.74 1,176.32 16.75 10,891.81
New assets originated 8,404.76 = ~ 8,404.76 5,061.12 = - 5,061.12
Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs) (3,951.11) (311.73) = (4,262.84) (3,878.17) (248.15) E (4,126.32)
Transfer to Stage 1 (553.73) 553.73 - = 605.57 (605.57) - -
Transfer to Stage 2 351.44 (351.44) = = (468.81) 468.81 - -
Transfer to Stage 3 (23.18) = 23.18 - = - = -
Amounts written off (34.40) (112.40) (16.75) (163.55) = = = -
Gross carrying amount closing halance 15,212.23 569.57 23.18 15,804.98 11,018.45 791.41 16.75 | 11,826.61
Number of Loans 155 13 1 169 128 11 1 140
Reconciliation of ECL balance is given below:
(% in millions)
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL allowance - opening balance 65.85 4.08 16.75 86.68 65.22 13.70 3.20 82.12
New assets originated 108.66 - = 108.66 14.49 = - 14.49
Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs) (8.76) (0.83) (9.59) (25.07) (2.82) = (27.89)
Transfers to Stage 1 (21.19) 21.19 = 9.35 (9.35) = -
Transfers to Stage 2 2.53 (2.53) - = (3.15) 3.15
Transfers to Stage 3 (4.80) - 4.80 - = = = -
Other movements (on account of change in EAD) = - - - 5.01 (0.60) 13.55 17.96
Amounts written off {34.40) (0.61) (16.75) (51.76) = = = =
ECL allowance - closing balance 107.89 21.30 4.80 133.99 65.85 4.08 16.75 86.68
# Internal rating grade: classified on below basis
Grade Classiﬁtfation Stage
Basis
High arade 0 DPD Staae 1
Standard grade 1-30 DPD Stage 1
Sub-standard arade 31-60 DPD Stage 2
Past due but not impaired 61-90 DPD Stage 2
Individually impaired >80 DPD & Stage 3
Restructured
Note - Higher grade has been considered for Customers having 2 or more loans based on the highest DPD
Loan Given Default _ (In %)
| As at March 31,| As at March
Particulars 2022 31, 2021
LGD 20.70 19.09
Probability of Default$ (In %)
. As at March 31,| As at March
Particulars 2022 31,2021
Stage 1 2.56 1.50
IStage 2 4.05 3.84
Stage 3 100.00 100.00
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Note 33.2 - Housing Loans

33.1 Credit quality of assats (% in millions)
particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage2 | Stage 3 Total
15,272.03 - - 15,272.03 9,666.49 E - 9,666.49
84271 - - 842.71 1,035.44 - - 1,035.44 |
Sub-standard grade = 447.97 - 447.97 = 425.14 - 425.14 |
Past due but not impaired - 517.49 = 517.49 310,24 - 310.24
[Restructured Assets - 13134 - 131,44 - 22.54 - 22,54
[Non Performing
Individually impaired = E; 26194 261.94 ¥ L 202.06 202.06
Total 16,114.74 1,096.90 261.94 17,473.58 10,701.93 757.92 202.06 11,661.91
33.2 An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to lending Is, as follows: (% in milligns)
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Stage 1 e 2 Stage 3 Tol 2 Stage 3 _ Total
Gross carrying amount o) ng balance 10,701.93 757.92 202.06 11,661.91 B,652.57 259.26 108.27 9,020.10
New assets originated or purchased 7.021.01 - - 7.921.01 3,770.17 . = 377017
Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs) (1,876.52) (95.39) (38.79) (2,010.70) (1,105.23) (12.84) (2.22) (1,120.29)
Transfers to Stage 233.86 (216,67 (1719} - 99,86 (99.07) (0.78) 0,00
Transfers to Stage (703.273 F1B.84 {15.57) 0.00 (640,37} 645,00 (4.63) -
Transfers to Stage 3 (110,57} {43.62) 154,54 - (75.07} (35.43) 109,50 -
Amounts written off (51 (24.18) (23.11) {98,641 - - 8,07 8.07
Gross carrying amount closing balance 16,114.74 1,096.90 261.94 17,473.58 10,701.93 757.92 202.06 11,661.91
Reconciliation of ECL balance is given below: % In milligns)
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 _ Total
ECL allowance - opening balance 35.34 57.58 52.07 144.99 21.45 14.32 34.01 69.78
New assets originated or purchased 185,07 - - 195.07 19.56 - - 19
Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs) (5.21) (21.11) (14.32) (40.64) (2.04) (1.58) (4.37) {7.99)
Transfers to Stage 1 224 (2.12) {0.12% 0.00 5.83 (5.61) (0.23) {0,013
Transfers to Smge 2 {114.81) 116.96 (215} {0.00% (1.53) 2.86 (1.33) -
Transfers to Stage 3 (34.60) (12.51) 47.10 (0.01) (0.18} {1.88) 2.07 0,01
mov 247 2.48 (4.75) = (7.76) 49.46 2193 63.63
Amounts written off = - - P = = . =
ECL allowance - closing balance 80.30 141.28 77.83 299.41 35.34 57.58 52.07 144.98
* Internal Rating Grades are classified on below basis
Grade Classification Basis| Stage

High grade 0 DPD %‘e
Standard grade -30 OFD Stage
Sub-standard arade 1-60 DPD Stage 2
Past due but rot impaired 1-90 DPD Stage 2
Restructured Assets 0DPD & Stage 2
Restrictired
. . >90 DPD &
Individually impaired Restructured Stage 3

Nole - Higher arade has been condider=d for Customers having 2 or more foans tased on the highest DPD

Loan Given Default § (Ir %)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2022 2021
LGD | 2868 2392
Probability of Default $ (In. %)
- As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2022 2021
Stage 1 1.86 1.50
Stage 2 33.21 3345
|Stage 3 100.00 100,60

$ PD & LGD includes management overlav due to COVID-19 pandemic (refer note no, 34)

Detail T
Nature of security against advances :

inst loan portfolio :

Underlying securities for the assets secured by tangible assets - Property & book debts.

Advances (LTV band wise):

Gross carrying

Cumulative loss

LTV ratio amount of allowance
advances
<= 50% 5,110.30 66.69
> 50% - <= 70% 5,280.60 65.84
> 70% - <= 90% 7,082.68 166.86

Credit impaired advances (LTV band wise):

Gross carrying

Cumulative loss
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LTV ratio amount of
advances allowance
<= 50% 37.98 10.89
> 50% - <= 70% 46.36 13,30
> 70% - <= 90% 177.60 53.63




Note 34
The extent to which any new wave of COVID-19 pandemic will impact the Group’s results will depend on ongoing as well as future developments,

including, among other things, any new information concerning the severity of the COVID-19 pandemic, and any action to contain its spread or mitigate its
impact whether government-mandated or elected by us.

The Group has assessed the potential impact of COVID-19 on the carrying value of its assets based on relevant internal and external factors/information
available, upto the date of approval of these financial results. In order to cover the impact of COVID-19 on the future expected credit losses, the Group
carries a management and macro economic variable outlay of X 443.30 millions as on March 31, 2022 (as on March 31, 2021  194.40 millions). The Group
will continue to closely monitor the material changes in the macro-economic factors impacting the operations of the Group.
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Note 35 - Income Taxes relating to continuing operations

1. Income Tax recognised in statement of profit and loss

(X In_millions)
For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars Mal‘ch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current Tax
In respect of the current year 779.55 693.03
In respect of prior years - 5.80 =
785.35 693.03
Deferred Tax
In respect of the current year (109.53) (105.45)
On Other Comprehensive Income - -
(109.53) (105.45)
Total Income tax expense recognised in the current year relating to
continuing operations 675.82 587.58
2, Reconciliation of income tax expense for the year:
(X in millions)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Consolidated Profit Before tax 2,726.23 2,357.13
Total tax expense (As per P&L)
- Current tax 779.55 693.03
- Deferred tax (109.53) (105.45)
- Tax Pertaining to earlier Years 5.80 =
Total Tax Expenses 675.82 587.58
Effective tax rate 24.58% 24.93%
Adjustments of allowable and non-allowable income and expenses:
Effect on Effective Tax rate due to permanent difference
a) Non allowability of Claim of CSR, Other Expenses & Special Reserve 50.12 22.52
b) Difference due to Tax Rate of STCG & LTCG 146.41 =
c) Deferred Tax Assets/MAT credit reversal u/s 1151B (8.08) - |
[Total of items affecting tax rate 188.45 22.52 |
3. Reconciliation of income tax rate is as follows:
(In %)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Normal Tax Rate 22.00 22.00
Surcharge (@ 10% of Normal Tax Rate) 2.20 2.20
Education cess (including secondary and higher education cess)
Health and Education Cess 0.97 0.97
Total Tax Rate 25.17 25.17
Tax Impact on Non allowability of Claim of CSR, Other Expenses & Special (0.46) (0.24)
Reserve ) )
Tax Impact on Capital Gain on sale of shares, mutual funds, interest, (0.43)
Property etc. ) -
Tax Impact on Deferred Tax Assets/MAT credit Reversal u/s 11518 0.30 i
Effective Tax Rate 24.58 24.93
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Note 36 - Deferred Tax

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the Income tax expense:

(X in millions)

Deferred Tax | Income Statement 0oCI Deferred Tax
Particulars Assets Assets
As at March As at March
31, 2021 2021-22 2021-22 31, 2022

Deferred Tax Assets:
Provision for Employee Benefits 12.63 2.58 - 15.21
Depreciation 22,95 1.30 # 24.25
Impairment allowance for financial assets 195.69 163.39 - 359.08
Unmortised fees on loans 18.08 (13.88) - 4.20
Others 8.03 (0.91) = 7.12
MAT Credit Entitlement 8.08 (8.08) - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Financial Instruments at FVTPL (3.81) 4.56 = 0.75
Unmortised fees on borrowings (4.36) 2.98 = (1.38)
Gain on derecognition of financial instruments* - (42.40) - (42.40)
Deferred Tax Assets (net) 257.29 109.54 - 366.83

*As per Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’, on derecognition of loans, the Group recognise difference between the carrying amount
(measured at the date of derecognition) and consideration received (including new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) as
gain in Statement of profit and loss account. Such gain recognised on derecognition of loans is not a real income as per Income tax
Act, 1961, hence is offered to tax over the tenure of loans. Accordingly, deferred tax liability has been created on the Spread

receivable on assigned portfolio (Co-lending portfalio).

(% in millions)
Deferred Tax | Income Statement oCI Deferred Tax
Particulars Assets Assets
As at March As at March
31, 2020 2020-21 2020-21 31, 2021

Deferred Tax Assets:
Provision for Employee Benefits 8.54 3.09 12.63
Depreciation 21.32 1.63 - 22.95
Impairment allowance for financial assets 97.29 98.40 - 195.69
Unmortised fees on loans 21.36 (3.28) - 18.08
Others 3.68 4.35 = 8.03
MAT Credit Entitiement 8.08 - 8.08
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Financial Instruments at FVTPL - (3.81) = (3.81)
Unmortised fees on borrowings (9.42) 5.06 = (4.36)
Deferred Tax Assets (net) 151.85 105.44 - 257.29

Deferred Tax Assets / Liabilities are calculated at the applicable rate of 25.17%
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Note 38 - Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

(X in millians)

Particulars As at April 1, 2021 Cash flows Other As at March 31, 2022

Debt Securities 6,741.30 (2,416.67) 6.27 4,330.90
Borrowings other than debt securities 30,994.57 12,088.92 669.48 43,752.97
Total liabilities from financing activities 37,735.87 9,672.25 675.75 48,083.87

(% in millions)

Particulars As at April 1, 2020 Cash flows Other As at March 31, 2021

Debt Securities 1,500.00 5,248.49 (7.19) 6,741.30
Borrowings other than debt securities 26,866.11 3,745.94 382.52 30,994.57
Total liabilities from financing activities 28,366.11 8,994.43 375.33 37,735.87




Note 39 - Fair value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions , regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique.

Ind AS 109, ‘Financia! Instrument - Disclosure’ requires classification of the valuation method of financial instruments measured at fair value in the balance Sheet, using a three level
fair-value-hierarchy (which reflects the significance of inputs used in the measurements). The hierarchy gives the highest priority to un-adjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Leve! 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair-value-hierarchy under Ind AS 107

are described below:

39.1 Financial instruments by category (% in milllons)
l As at March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021
Particulars FVTPL Amortised FVTOCT Toal | AaRL Amortised FVTOCI Total
cost cost
Financial assets
(Investments
- Mutual funds 2,304.43 - ~ 2,304.43 4,394.08 - = 4,394.08
- Commercial Paper = = = = = 959.13 E 959.13
- Equity instruments _ 48.11 = = 48.11 38.73 - = 38.73
- Debt Instrument - 247.66 - 247.66 - 952.76 - 952.76
- Pass Throuagh Certificates - 1,174.64 5 1,174.64 - 1,729.83 = 1.729.83
Trade receivables = 81.64 = 81.64 - 15.08 = 15.08
Loans - 62.708.03 = 62,708.03 = 46,862.55 - 26.862.55 |
Cash and cash equivalents = 3.225.06 = 3,225.06 = 1,705.80 = 1,705.80
Bank Balances other than above B 306.15 - 306.15 - 536.68 - 536.68
Other financial Assets - 222.14 X 222.14 = 113.14 - 113.14
Total financial assets 2,352.54 67.965.32 = 70,317.86 4.432.81 52,874.97 - 57,307.78
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments = - 12.42 12.42 - - - -
Borrowings (including Debt Securities) - 48,083.87 - 48,083.87 - 37,735.87 = 37.735.87
Trade and other pavables - 413.10 - 413.10 - 147.21 - 147.21
Other financial llabilities = 3,508.81 - 3,508.81 - 2,776.54 = 2.,776.54
Total financial liabilities - 52,005.78 12,42 52,018.20 = 40,659.62 = 40.659.62

39.2 Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b)
measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair
value, the Group has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each leve! follows undemeath the table.

(% in millions)
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair - " Fair Value
N . " Notes Carrying A
value - recurring fair value s Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
As at March 31, 2022
Financial assets
Financigl Investments at FVTPL
Listed equity investments 7 48.11 48.11 - - 48.11
Mutual funds 7 2,304.43 2,304.43 - - 2,304.43
Total financial assets 2,352.54 2.352.54 - - 2.352.54
Financial Liabilities
| Derivative financial instruments 16A 12.42 12.42 12.42
| Total financial liabilities 12.42 - | 12.42 | - 12.42
(% in millions)
Assets and liabilities which are measured at - Fair Value
amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed Notes Carrying Amount Levei 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
As at March 31, 2022
Financijal assets
(Cash and cash equivalents 3 3,225.06 = - 3,225.00
Bank Balance other than above 4 306.15 = - 306.15
Trade Receivable 5 81.64 = = 81.64 81.64
Loans =
Loans to emplovees 6 1.13 - E 1.13 1.13
Loans - SME & CF 62,706.90 = - 62,984.44 62,984.44
Investments
- Commercial Paper = d = ] =
- Debt Ingtrument 7 247.66 - E 247.66 247.66
~ Pass Through Certificates 1,174.64 = E 1,174.64 1,174.64
Other financial assets 8 222.14 - = 222.14 222.14
Total financial assets 67.965.32 3,531.21 - 64,711.65 68,242.86
Financial Liabilities
Trade and other payable 14 413.10 = - 413.10 413.10
Debt Securities 15 4,330.90 4,452.63 4,452.63
Borrowings other than Debt Securities 168 43,752.97 - = 43,752.97 43,752.97
Other Financial Liabilities 17 3,508.81 - = 3,508.81 3,508.81
Total financial liabilities 52,005.78 4,452.63 - 47,674.88 52,127.51
(Z in millions)
Financial assets and labilities measured at fair - N Fair Value
. Notes Carrying A
value - recurring fair value measurements Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
As at March 31, 2021
Financial assets
Financial Investments at FVTPL
Listed equity investments 7 38.73 38.73 = = 38.73
Mutual funds 7 4,394.08 4,394.08 - = 4,394.08
Total financial assets 4,432.81 4,432.81 - = 4,432.81
Financial liabilities - - - - -
Total financial liabilities - - - -
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(% in millions)

Assets and liabilities which are measured at Notes Carrying A Fair Value

amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at March 31, 2021

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3 1,705.80 1,705.80 = 1,705.80
Bank Balance other than above 4 536.68 536.68 - 536.68
Trade Receivable 5 15.08 - - 15.08 15.08
Loans

Loans to employees 6 1.19 - - 1.19 1.19
|Loans - SME & CF 46,861.36 = - 46,861.36 46,861.36
Investments - ! —

- Commercial Paper 959.13 = 959.13 - 959.13
- Debt Instrument 7 952.76 = 952.76 - 952.76
- Pass Throuagh Certificates 1,729.83 - - 1.729.83 1,729.83
Other financial assets 8 113.14 - - 113.14 113.14
Total financial assets 52,874.97 2,242.48 1,911.89 48,720.60 52,874.97
Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payable 14 147.21 - - 147.21 147.21
Debt Securities 15 6,492.81 6,492.81 = = 6,492.81
Borrowings other than Debt Securities 16B 31,243.06 = a 31,243.06 31,243.06
Other Financial Liabilities 17 2,776.54 = - 2,776.54 2,776.54
Total financial liabilities 40,659.62 6,492.81 i 34,166.81 40,659.62

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted
price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period. The mutual funds

are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the- counter derivatives) is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are

observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities,
contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in leve! 3.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, capital creditors and cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term
nature.

1071220 /
W100672




Note 40 - Risk Management

40.1. Risk Disclosures

Group’s risk is managed through an integrated risk management framework, including ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits
and other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the Group’s continuing profitability and each individual within the Group is accountable for the
risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities. The Group is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.

It is the Group’s policv to ensure that a robust risk awareness is embedded in its oraanisational risk culture.

40.2. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that the Group will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their contractual obligations. The Group manages

and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual counterparties.
40.2.1 Impairment assessment

40.2.1.1 Exposure at Default
EAD is taken as the gross exposure under a facility upon default of an obligor. The amortized principal and the interest accrued is considered as EAD for the

purpose of ECL computation

The advances have been bifurcated into following three stages:

Stage 1 — Advances with low credit risk and where there is no significant increase in credit risk. Hence, the advances up to 0-30 days are classified as Stagel
Stage 2 — Advances with significant increase in credit risk. Hence the advances from 31 to 90 days are classified as Stage 2

Stage 3 — Advances that have defauited / Credit impaired advances. Hence the advances with more than 90 days past due or Restructured Advances are
classified as Stage 3. Another loan of the same customer whether in Stage 1 or Stage 2 is also considered as Stage 3 loan.

40.2.1.2 Significant increase in credit risk
The Group continuously monitors all assets subject to ECLs. In order to determine whether an instrument or a portfolio of instruments is subject to 12 months

ECL or lifetime ECL, the Group assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The Group considers an exposure to
have sianificantly increased in credit risk if contractual payments are more than 30 davs past due.

40.2.1.3 Definition of default and cure
The Group considers a financial instrument defaulted and therefore Stage 3 (credit impaired) for ECL calculations in all cases when the borrower becomes 90

days past due on its contractual payments.

As a part of a qualitative assessment of whether a customer is in default, the Group also considers a variety of instances that may indicate inability to pay. When
such events occur, the Group carefuily considers whether the event should result in treating the customer as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL
calculations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate. Such events include:

a) Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

b) A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

¢) The restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider otherwise; or

d) It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation

It is the Group’s policy to consider a financial instrument as ‘cured’ and therefore re-classified out of Stage 3 when the borrower makes necessary payments &
the borrower is not 90 days past due after such payments. The decision whether to classify an asset as Stage 2 or Stage 1 once cured depends on the updated
credit grade, at the time of the cure, and whether this indicates there has been a significant increase in credit risk compared to initial recognition.

40.2.1.4 Probability of Default ("PD") estimation process

The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed
period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio. Probability of Default is computed based on number of accounts that
default during a year as a percentage of average number of accounts outstanding (refer note 33).

a) The Group has applied 12 months PD to stage 1 advances

b) The Lifetime PD is computed using basic exponentiation technique after considering the residual maturity of the respective loan.

¢) PD of 100% is considered for Stage 3 assets.

40.2.1.5 Loss Given Default ("LGD™)
The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. 1t is based on the difference between the contractual

cash flows due and those that would be expected to receive, including from realisation of any prime/collateral security. LGD is computed based discounted
expected recoveries at an account level based on collateral valuation after applying appropriate hair cut and appropriate recovery time. Accordingly, an average
LGD is derived at the portfolio level.

40.2.2 Collateral and other credit enhancements
The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty. Group has guidelines in place covering the

acceptability and valuation of each type of collateral.

1) The main type of collateral for construction finance is mortgage of project and hypothecation of Receivables.

2) In case of MSME loans, collaterals are Residential/Commercial/Industrial property.

Management monitors the market value of collateral and will request additional collateral in accordance with the underlying agreement.

In case of defaults by customers, where the Group is unable to recover the dues, the Group through a legal process enforces the security and recovers the dues.

40.2.3 Tn accordance with the instructions in the RBI circular dated April 07 2021 , all lending institutions shall refund / adjust 'interest on interest' to al!
borrowers, irrespective of whether moratorium had been fully or partially availed, or not availed. Pursuant to these instructions, the Indian Banks Association
(IBA) in consultation with other industry participants / bodies published the methodology for calculation of the amount of such 'interest on interest'. Accordingly.
the Group has estimated the said amount and made provision for refund/adjustment.

40.2.4 The outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic across the globe & India has contributed to a significant volatility and decline in the global and Indian financial
markets and slowdown in the economic activities. Pursuant to the guidelines issued by RBI dated, March 27, 2020, April 17, 2020 and May 23, 2020 relating to
COVID-19 Regulatory Package, the Group has granted moratorium on the payment of instalments falling due between March 01, 2020 and August 31, 2020 to
the eligible borrowers. For the purpose of asset classification on all such accounts, the number of days past due as on March 31, 2021 excludes the moratorium
period to the respective borrower, as per the policy.

40.2.5 Hon'able Supreme court vide order dated March 23, 2021, in the matter of Smalt Scale industrial Manufacturers Associations VS UOI & Ors. Has stated
that interim relief granted vide an interim order dated September 03, 2020 stands vacated. Accordingly the Group has classified non performing assets as per
extant RBI guidelines.
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40.3. Liquidity risk and funding management
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises
because of the possibility that the Group might be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due as a result of mismatches in the timing of the cash flows under both normal and stress circumstances.
Such scenarios could occur when funding needed for illiquid asset positions is not available to the Group on acceptable terms. To limit this risk, management has arranged for diversified funding sources and
adopted a policy of managing assets by monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis.
Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with our Asset Liability Management Policy. This palicy is framed as per the current regulatory guidelines and is approved by the Board of Directors. The Asset Liability
Management Policy is reviewed periodically to incorporate changes as required by regulatory stipulation or to realign the policy with changes in the economic landscape. The Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) of the
Group formulates and reviews strategies and provides guidance for management of liquidity risk within the framework laid out in the Asset Liability Management Policy.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flow of the Group’s financial liabilities:

rrent Year
. Over 1 month Over 2 months Over 3 months Over 6 months| Over 1 year Over 3 year
Particulars upto 30/31 days upto 2 months | upto 3 months m::::lfhs to 1 year to 3 years to 5 years Over 5 years Total
Debt Securities - 213.42 45.00 234.68 77.36 3,209.23 306.90 1,882.99 5,969.58
Borrowings 403.95 824.82 1,381.84 2,916.70 6,240.42 23,049.92 12,871.24 5,023.27 52,712.16
Trade Payable 413.10 - = - = = £ = 413.10
Lease liability 6.31 6.32 6.30 15.07 37.61 132.18 87.94 16.92 312.65
Other Financial Liability 3,039.19 =z - - - - E E 3,039.19
Previous Year {% in millions)
N Over 1 month | Over 2 months Over 3 months Over 6 months| Over 1 year Over 3 year
Particulars upto 30/31 days upto 2 months | upto 3 months mnt::tshs to 1 year to 3 years to 5 years Over 5 years Total
Debt Securities - - 166.67 2,250.00 2,826.14 - 1,500.00 6,742.81
Borrowings 116.30 364.63 827.02 1,541.66 3,152.96 13,221.57 9,799.80 1,923.33 30,947.27
Trade Payable 147.11 - - = - - - 147.11
Lease liability 536 533 5.33 15.97 30.08 97.49 92.13 28.50 280.19
Other Financial Liability 2,229.22 = - - - 2,229.22

40.4; Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values of financial instruments, The core business of the Group is providing loans to MSME
Construction Finance, Indirect Lending and Housing Finance. The Group borrows through various financial instruments to finance its core lending activity. These activities expose the Group to interest rate risk.

Interest rate risk is measured through earnings at risk from an earnings perspective and through duration of equity from an economic value perspective. Further, exposure to fluctuations in interest rates is also
measured by way of gap analysis, providing a static view of the maturity and re-pricing characteristic of Balance sheet positions. An interest rate sensitivity gap report is prepared by classifying all rate sensitive
assets and rate sensitive liabilities into various time period categories according to contracted/behavioural maturities or anticipated re-pricing date. The difference in the amount of rate sensitive assets and rate
sensitive liabilities maturing or being re-priced in any time period category, gives an indication of the extent of exposure to the risk of potential changes in the margins on new or re-priced assets and liabilities. The
interest rate risk is monitored through above measures on a quarterly basis.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (all other variables being considered as constant) of the Group’s statement of profit and loss and equity.

= (% in millions)
in i i T profit
| Currency crease [ (gz::nr:‘lsa) In basis Sens:t::f\;yﬂ; pri Sensitivity of equity
! 2021-23
| 25 Basis paint Up 152.58 | 11942
i 50 Basis paint Up Impact on Profit 31915 |, 235.83 |
Loans (3) [ 35 Bass point Do before Tax {15558y "TPct an Equity| {119.47]
50 Basis point Down (319.15) {238.83)
25 Basis point Up (120.73) (90.34)
. 50 Basis point Up Impact on Profit [241.456) . (1B0.68)
Borrowings (¥) 75 Basis point Down before Tax 120,73 | PRt on equity 90,34
50 Basis paint Down 241 46 180.68
(¥ i millions}
2020-21
25 Basis point Up 120,66
540 Basis point Up Impact on Profit 241.32 .
Loans (%) 35 Basi poinl Bown before Tax 130,66 Impact on eguily
50 Basis point Dawn (241.32)
25 Basis point Up {78.32)
N 50 Basis paint Up Impact on Profit {155.83)
Borrowings (3) 25 Basis point Down before Tax 78,32 | mPact on eauity
50 Basis point Down 155,83

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls fail to operate effectively, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or
regulatory implications, or lead to financial loss. The Group cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but it endeavours to manage these risks through a control framework and by monitoring and responding
to potential risks. Controls include maker-checker controls, effective segregation of duties, access, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes, such as the use of internal

audit.

During the year, the Group has not come across any instances of fraud.

Capital Management :

Group’s capital management objective is primarily to safeguard business continuity. The Group's capital raising policy is aligned to macro economic situation and incidental risk factors. The Group’s cashflows are
regularly monitored in sync with annual operating plans and long-term and other strategic investment plans. The operational funding requirements are met through debt and operating cash flows generated. The
Group believes this approach would create shareholder value in long run. Also, the Group has adopted a conservative approach for ALM management with primacy to adequate liquidity. At present a large portion of
the Group's resource base is equity. Therefore the Group enjoys a low gearing.

The Group maintains its capital structure in line with economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities and the board reviews the capital position on a regular basis.

Gearina ratio : {® in milfions)
Particulars | AsatMarch 31, | AsatMarch 31,
| 2022 2021
The gearing ratio at each date were as follows ¢

Dbt {11 48.08629 37.900.30
Cash and bank balances (II) (refer 3,225.06 1,705.72
note 3)
Net deht (X - IT) 44.871.23 36.194.58
Total eauitv 19,224.71 17,173.01

2.33 2.11
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ote 41A- Defin ibution Plan

The Group’s state governed provident fund scheme are defined contribution plan for its employees. The Contribution by the employer and employee together with interest
accumulated there on are payable to the employee at the time of separation from Group or retirement whichever is earlier. The benefit vests immediately on rendering of

services by the employee.

{% in millions)
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021
Emplover's contribution to provident fund 57.61 28.03
Emplover's contribution to National Pension Scheme 2,98 3.25
Total 60.59 31.28

Mnta A1 B- Definad Ranafit Plan

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India (funded). The Group’s defined benefit gratuity plan is a final salary plan for its employees, which requires
contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has
completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at separation/retirement,
The fund has the form of a trust and it is governed by the Board of Trustees, which consists of an equal number of employer and employee representatives. The Board of
Trustees is responsible for the administration of the plan assets and for the definition of the investment strategy.

The following table sets out the status of the Defined Benefit Gratuity Plan as per the actuarial valuation by the independent Actuary appointed by the Group:

Principal assumptions used for the actuarial valuations are as follows:

(% In milligns)
Gratuity Plans
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021
Discount Rate 5.66% 5.58%
Expected Rate of return on Plan Asset 5.66% 5.58%
Salary Escalation 5.00% 5.00%
Attrition Rate 24.00% 20.00%
Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
Mortality Table Mortality Mortality (2006-08)
2012-14 (Urban) Ultimate
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
(% in millions)
Gratuity Plans
particulars As at March 31,2022 | As at March 31, 2021
Present_ Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of 0.3 38.44
the Period
Current Service Cost 12.36 12.35
Interest Cost 2.36 2.40
Past Service Cost (Vested Benefit) = -
Liability transferred In/ Acauisitions - -
Remeasurement (gains)/losses
Benefit Paid From the Fund (3.80) (4.99)
Direct Payment by the Group - =
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change
in Demoaraphic Assumptions (214) (1.60)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change (0.15) 115
in Financial Assumptions i 2
Actuarlal (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to 338 (5.52)
Experience
Present_ Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of 54.24 42.23
the Period
Movements in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:
{% in millians)
Gratuity Plans
Particulars As at March 31,2022 | As at March 31, 2021
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Period 35.84 29.12
Interest income 2.00 1.82
Contributions by emplover 6.43 9.60
Assets transferred In/Acauisitions = =
Expected Contributions by the employees - -
Benefit Paid From the Fund (3.80) {4.99)
Remeasurement gain (ioss) - .
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income 0.62 0.29
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period 41.09 35.84
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Amount recognized in the balance sheet from the Group’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit

plans is as follows:

(% in mllions)

Gratuity Plans

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021
(Prgsent Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the (54.25) (42.22)
Period)

Fair value of plan assets 41.10 35.84
Funded status (Surplus/ (Deficit)) {13.15) (6.38)
Net (Liability)/Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet (13.15) (6.38)

Net Interest Cost for current period:

(% in millions)
Gratuity Plans

Particulars As at March 31,2022 | As at March 31, 2021
Present. Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of 9.3 38.44
the Period
(Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Period) (35.84) (29.13)
Net Liability/(Asset) at the Beginning 6.39 9.31
Interest Cost 2.35 2.40
(Interest Income) (2.00) (1.82)
Net Interest Cost for Current Period 0.35 0.58

Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss in respect of these defined benefit plans are

as follows:

Expense Recognized

(% in millions)
Gratuity Plans
Particulars As at March 31,2022 | Asat March 31, 2021
Service cost:
Current service cost 12.36 12,35
Expected Cantributions by the employees = >
Past Service Cost (Amortised) Recoanised -
Past Service Cost (Vested Benefit) Recoanised = =
Net interest expense 0.36 0.58
12.72 12.93

plans are as follows:

Amounts recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) in respect of these defined benefit

(% in milllons)
Gratuity Pians
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021
Eeettl:;rtlet:gst::D:is;t)s (exciuding amounts included in (0.62) (0.29)
Actuarial (gains) / losses on defined benefit obligations 1.09 (5.98)
Change in asset ceiling 2 _
i':.e:) g:ncome)lExpense For the Period Recognized 0.47 (6.27)
The fair value of the plan assets for India are as follows:
(X in millians)

Gratuity Fund

Category of Assets

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Central Govt. Securities

State Govt. Securities

Debt Securities, Money Market Securities and Bank
Deposits

Mutual Funds

Insurer Manaaed Funds* 41.10 35.84
Others . -
Total 41.10 35.84

*The investment further done by the insurer are in Govt. Securities 38.10%, Corporate Bonds 59.28% and Cash, Deposits, Money Market Instruements 2.62%
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Maturity Analysis of benefit payments

{% in millions)
Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years From the| ac o+ March 31,2022 | Asat March 31, 2021
Date of Reporting
1st Following Year 9.20 5.94
2nd Following Year 9.18 4.51
3rd Following Year 9.05 6.24
4th Following Year 7.32 6,91
Sth Following Year 6.98 5.33
Sum of Years 6 To 10 18.22 16.46
Sum of Years 11 and above 7.63 10.04

The estimates of future salary growth, factored in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand
in the employment market. Such estimates are very long term and are not based on limited past experience / immediate future., Empirical evidence also suggests that in
very long term, consistent high salary growth rates are not possible. The said estimates and assumptions have been relied upon by the auditors.

Sensitivity analysis

(% in millions)

Particuilars

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Sensitivity Level

1% increase

1% increase

1% decrease

1% decrease

Impact on defined benefit obligation (in %)

1) Discount Rate (1.78) (1.72) 1.92 1.87
2) Future Salary Increases 1.85 1.81 (1.77) (1.70)
3) Employee Turnover (0.51) (0.48) 0.52 0.49

Note :

-The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while

holding all other assumptions constant.

-The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
-Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method
at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as applied in calculating the projected benefit obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.

-There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.
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Note 43 - ment Information (IND-AS 108

Operating Segment:

The Group operates mainly in the business segment of fund based financing activity. All other activities revolve around the main business. Further, all activities are

carried out within India. As such, there are no separate reportable segments as per the provisions of IND AS 108 on ‘Operating Segments’,

N 4 - In A ith I - 33 Earnings Per Share
The computation of earning per share is set out below:
Particulars For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
a March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (A) (X in millions) 2,050.41 1,769.55
Weiahted average number of equity shares for calculating Basic EPS (B} Nos. 17,54,26,904 17,52,85,355
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating Diluted EPS (C) Nos. 17,74,05,541 17,65,01,662
Basic earnings per equity share (Face value of ¥ 2/- per share} (A)/(B) L 11.69 10.10
Diluted earnings per equity share (Face value of ¥ 2/- per share) (A)/(C) g 11.56 10.03
. For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating EPS Nos. 17,54,26,904 17,52,85,355
Add : Equity shares for no consideration arising on grant of stock options under ESOP Nos. 19,78,637 12,16,307
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculation of diluted EPS Nos. 17,74,05,541 17,65,01,662
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Note 45 - Leases

The changes in the carrying value of ROU assets are as follows:

(% in millions)
. As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2022 2021
Gross carrying value
Balance as at the beginning of the Year 296.79 273.24
On adoption of IND AS 116 - B
Additions/Modifications 93.90 23.55
Terminations 37.75 -
Translation adjustments - -
Balance as at the end of the Year 352.94 296.79
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at the beginning of the Year 111.15 56.20
Depreciation 42.82 54.95
Terminations/modifications 24.10 -
Translation adjustments - -
Balance as at the end of the Year 129.87 111.15
Net Carrying Value at the end of the Year 223,07 185.64
The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year:
(% in millions)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2022 2021
Lease liabilities
Balance as at the beginning of the Year 211.74 231.58
Additions/Maodification 83.23 23.55
Terminations/modifications 16.36 -
Finance expense 26.12 25.56
Payment of lease liabilities 56.53 68.94
Translation adjustments = B
248.20| 211.74|

|Balance as at the end of the Year

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2022, on an

undiscounted basis:

(% in millions)

Tenure 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021
Less than 1 year 20.05 62.07
1-3 years 44.51 97.49
3-5 years 216.40 92.14
More than 5 vears 31.70 28.50
| Total 312.66 280.20

The Group has adequate liquidity for payment of lease liabilities. The Group regularly monitor and pays lease rentals on

timely manner as per the terms of respective leave and license agreement.

The Group has right to extend lease term as per mutually agreed terms laid down in respective leave and license
agreement. The Group takes into account effect of extended lease term while recording the lease assets and lease liabilities

accordingly.

N



Note 46 - Employee Stock Option

The Holding Company has granted Employee Stock Options (ESOP) under the Employee Stock Option Scheme 2009 (ESOP 2009)
to employees of the Holding Company and Subsidiary spread over a period 1 to 4 years.

Employee Stock Option Plans

A Summary of the general terms of grants under stock options plans are as under: -

| As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
I T

Name of Plan Nflmber of Range of Nflmber of Range of

options under . . options under . .
the Plan Exercise Price the Plan Exercise Price

Employee Stock Option Plan 30,40,800 ¥ 2to X300 15,80,450 ¥ 21t0X194.9
The activity of the Stock Plans is summarised below:
Year ended

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Particulars

Exercise Price/

Exercise Price/

Numbers |\ esting Price (2)]  NUMP®™S  |vesting Price (%)
4,42,000 100.00 5,74,000 100.00
2,85,000 70.00 2,85,000 70.00
. - 7,32,950 2.00 5,55,000 2.00
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 50,500 130.00 2,00,500 130.00
50,000 174.00 50,000 174.00
20,000 194.90 15,000 158.20
10,000 232.80 2,95,000 2.00
3.70.000 225.00 20,000 194.90
Granted 8.75.000 350.00 - =
9,50,000 300.00
1,29,600 2.00 1,13,000 100.00
Exercised 85,500 70.00 37,550 2.00
1,53,600 | 100.00 |
37,950 2.00 25,500 100.00
28,000 130.00 52,000 2.00
Forfeited, expired and cancelled 10,000 232.80 1,50,000 130.00
3.,00,000 225.00 15,000 158.20
21,000 2.00
2,88,400 100.00 4,42,000 100.00
1,99,500 70.00 2,85,000 70.00
5,65,400 2.00 7,32,950 2.00
22,500 130.00 50,500 130.00
Outstanding at the end of the year 50,000 174.00 50,000 174.00
20,000 194.90 20,000 194.90
70,000 225.00 - -
8,75,000 250.00 - -
9,50,000 300.00 = =

The Weighted average fair value of the new ESOPs granted during the year is ¥ 335.20 (previous Year ¥ 164.12).




"

The following table summarises information about stock option plans:

Year ended
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Exercise Price VXEiEﬁted VXElﬁTited
T verage verage
© Numbers Remaining Life Numbers Remaining Life
(Months) (Months)
130.00 22,500 19 50,500 31
174.00 50,000 19 50,000 31
194.90 20,000 35 20,000 48
100.00 2,88,400 10 4,42,000 16
70.00 1,99,500 6 2,85,000 12
2.00 5,65,400 21 7,32,950 28
225.00 70,000 44 - -
250.00 8,75,000 46 = -
300.00 9,50,000 48 = -

Fair Value Methodology:

The fair value of the shares are measured using Black-Scholes-Merton formula. Measurement inputs include share price on
measurement date, exercise date of the instrument, exercise price, expected life, risk free interest rate, dividend yield, expected
volatility.

The following table summarizes the assumptions used in calculating the grant date fair value.

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Expected life of the options 3to 5 Years 3 to 5 Years
Expected volatility 50% to 60% 60%
Dividend yield 1% 1%

Risk-free interest rate

4.72% to 6.28%

4.59% to 5.62%

Expected life of the options: Expected life of the options is the period for which the holding company expects the Options to
be live. The minimum life of a stock option is the minimum period before which the options cannot be exercised, and the
maximum life is the period after which the options cannot be exercised.

Expected volatility: The measure of volatility used in ESOP pricing model is the annualised standard deviation of the
continuously compounded rates of return {calculated by log function) on the share over a period prior to the date of grant
corresponding to the expected life of the option.

Dividend yield: Dividend Yield has been calculated as an average of dividend yields of six financial years preceding the date of
grant. The dividend yield for the year is derived by dividing the dividend per share by the share price as on dividend effective
date.

Risk-free interest rate: The rate used to discount employee benefit obligations reflects the estimated timing of benefit
payments and the currency in which the benefits are to be paid. We have used the Discount Rate which relates to the par-yield
rate available on ZYC Government Securities (G. Sec.) for the tenure of the expected life of options. (Ref: G Sec. rates available
through www.fbil.org.in with prices/yields published by FBIL).

The Weighted average market price of the ESOPs exercised during the year is ¥ 530.71 (previous year ¥ 269.37).

ESOP cost recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for March 31,2022 ¥ 54.78 Millions (March 31, 2021 % 31.20 Millions)

Note 47 - Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Software Expenses % 1.47 Millions (March 31, 2021 % 1.61 Millions)
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Note 48 - Details of dues to micro and small enterprises

The Group has sent confirmations to suppliers to confirm whether they are covered under The Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006) as well as they have filled required memorandum with prescribed
authorities. Out of the confirmations sent to the parties, some confirmation have been received till date of finalisation of Balance
Sheet. Based on the confirmations received, outstanding amounts payable to vendors covered under The Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 has been disclosed under note no. 14.

Note 49 - Contingent Liabilities

Income Tax matters under dispute: March 31, 2022 % 115.18 Millions (March 31, 2021 X 3.63 Millions)

Note 50 - Capital and Other Commitments

a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for March 31, 2022 ¥ 66.55
Millions (March 31, 2021 X 13.88 Millions)
b) Amount payable towards acquisition of Property for March 31, 2022 % 39.82 Millions (March 31, 2021 % 48.10 Millions)

c) Other Commitments
Pending disbursements of sanctioned loans for March 31, 2022 ¥ 13,341.79 Millions (March 31, 2021 % 9,259.46 Millions)

Note 51 - Fraud Reporting
The group has reported frauds aggregating March 31, 2022 ¥ NIL (March 31, 2021 % NIL) based on management reporting to risk
committee and to the RBI through prescribed returns.

Note 52 - Details of all collateral used as security for liabilities

(% in millions)

Particulars Carrying amount of financial
assets pledged
As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021
Assets type
Loans receivable as collateral under lending agreements 63,627.34 47,853.20
Loans receivable as collateral under PTC agreements 1,177.71 1,729.84
Receivables from investment in securities as collateral 2,554.12 5,389.90

Cash and other bank balance collateral under lending agreements | 3,515.09 | 2,141.42 |




(i) Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment:
The Group has not revalued Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.

(ii) Revaluation of Intangible Assets:
The Group has not revalued Intangible assets during the year.

(iii) Loans or Advances:

During the year, the Group has not provided any loans or advances granted to promoters, directors and KMPs.
However, the loan was provided to one of the subisidiary and the same was repaid as well.

(iv) Intangible assets under development ageing schedule:

(% in milllons)
Amount in Intangible Assets under development for a period of
I il T
ntangible Assets under development Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Morye etal::n 3 otal
Projects in progress (Software) 23.20 - - - 23.20

(v) Details of Benami Property held:
No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended

from time to time) and the rules made thereunder.

(vi) Security of current assets against borrowings:
Quarterly retums or statements of current assets filed by the Group with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts.

(vii) Wilful Defaulter:
The Group has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(viil) Relationship with Struck off Companies:

Details of transaction with strick off Companies is as follows-

Nature of
transaction with Balance Relationship with

struck off outstanding struck off Company

Companv

Name of struck off Company

Netclick Infocomm Private Limited Internet service - NA

(ix) Compliance with number of layers of companies:
The Group has complied with the requirements of number of layers as per Section 186 of Companies Act, 2013,

{x) Compliance with abproved Sch (s) of Arrar ts:
The Group has not entered into any scheme of arrangement.

(xi) Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium
Borrowed funds have been utilised for the purpose they have been sanctioned and share premium has been utilised in working capital.

(xvii)
(a) The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or other kind of funds) to or in any other person or
entity, including foreign entity (“"Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the fike on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Group has not received any funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Group shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Note 53 B - Additional Disclosures

(i) Pursuant to the RBI circular dated November 12, 2021 - "Prudential norms on Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning pertaining to Advances - Clarifications”
(RBI Circular - RBI/2021-2022/125/DOR.STR.REC.68/21.04.048/2021-22) the Group had aligned its definition of default from number of instalments outstanding approach to Days
Past Due approach. Subsequently on February 15, 2022 vide circular RBI/2021-2022/158/DOR.STR.REC.85/21.04.048/2021-22 (RBI Clarification), RBI has deferred the
implementation of Para 10 of circular till September 30, 2022. Accordingly, the Group, in accordance with the said RBI clarification, has decided to implement the change in
Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning norms by September 30, 2022. The impact of the RBI circular, which was recognized in the results of nine months'
period ended December 31, 2021 has been reversed by derecognizing such assets as credit impaired.

(i) Events after reporting date - There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements.
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Name of the entity in the Group

Net Assets, i.e. total assets minus

Share in Profit or Loss

Share in Other Comprehensive

Share in total Comprehensive

total liability income income
As % of As % of As %o of As % of total
consolidated net Amount Consolidated Amount Consolidated other Amount Compr . A

assets (2 in millions) Profit or Loss (T in millions) com&rre:::slve (2 in millions) income (X in millions)
Parent
Capri Giobal Capital Limited
(net off elimination) 93.02% 17,883.54 79.83% 1,636.86 65.23% (3.21) 79.87% 1,633.65
Subsidiaries
Indian

pri Global Housing Finance Limited

(net off elimination) 6.98% 1,341.17 20.17% 413.55 34.77% (1.71) 20.13% 411.84
Total 100.00% 19,224.71 100.D0% 2,050.41 100.00% (4.92) 100.00% 2,045.49
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Note 55 - Previo e u

Previous year's figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to current year's presentation.
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